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EXEC. DI R. ©McCLENDON: Good nor ni ng,
everyone. This is the Phil adel phia Gas
Comm ssion's public hearing on PGWs FY '25
Capi tal Budget.

My nane is Genela MCl endon, | amthe
Executive Director of the Gas Conm ssi on,
and I will be presiding over this proceeding
along with Seni or Hearing Exam ner Heidi
Wishi nske.

We have a set agenda which we will go
t hrough. At the conclusion of that agenda
and before we do the final cleanup and
housekeepi ng matters that have to be done
that | will take care of at the end of the
hearing, there will be an opportunity for
menbers of the public to speak.

You will be given three mnutes in
order to offer coments on the FY '25
Capital Budget. Comments that do not relate
to the fiscal year '25 Capital Budget are
not being taken at this tine. So if you do
opt to speak, we are respectfully requesting
that you keep it on the topic of today,
which is the FY '25 Capital Budget.
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The transcript of this hearing wll
be posted on the Gas Conmmi ssion's website at
the conclusion of this once we have it so it
can be accessed by anyone if they need to
refer back to anything that was said during
this hearing.

Ms. Wiushinske, is that everything?
think that's kind of the opening stuff that
we ki nd of need, the housekeeping stuff. |Is
there anything that you can think of that |
m ght have m ssed?

HEARI NG EXAM NER WUSHI NSKE: | don't
think so. | think you got it all, Executive
Di rector MCl endon.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Thank you.

At this time we will be swearing in
the individuals who will be offering
testinony during this proceeding. That w |
be M. Lafayette Morgan, M. Mark
Kleinginna. | believe M. Tene is in the
room

The individuals who will be offering
testi nony on behalf of PGW if they are

present at this time, please identify

Veritext Lega Solutions
215-241-1000 ~ 610-434-8588 ~ 302-571-0510 ~ 202-803-8830




© 00 N oo o A~ w N PP

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R R
A WO N P O ©O 0O N O O B W N +—» O

Page 7

yourselves so that Ms. M gatz can begin the
swearing-in process.

MR. GALLAGHER: Bill Gall agher.

MR. TEME: Florian Team

MS. DeLUSSEY: Kelly Ann DelLussey.

EXEC. DI R. M:CLENDON: Okay. I think
that that is everyone from PGWthat's
present at this tine.

So, Ms. Mgatz, you can proceed with
the swearing in.

(Wher eupon, the above-identified
wi t nesses, FLORI AN TEME, W LLI AM GALLAGHER,
KELLY ANN DeLUSSEY, LAFAYETTE MORGAN, and
MARK KLEI NGl NNA, were sworn.)

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: My apol ogi es;
just give ne one second.

The first item on our agenda are
stipul ations. Yesterday evening M. Dasent
on behal f of PGW sent over a list of
agreenents that are acceptable to PGW at
this juncture of the proceeding. That |ist

was sent to the Service List.
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So, M. Ballenger and M. MDougall,
you both have received that, is that
correct, and have had an opportunity to | ook
over it?

MR. BALLENGER: That's correct.

MR. McDOUGALL: Yes, correct.

EXEC. DI R. McCLENDON: Okay.

M. Dasent, you can proceed.

MR. DASENT: Thank you.

First of all, good norning, everyone.
We have a Summary of Adjustnents Agreeable
to PGWthat was referenced earlier. W've
circulated that to the parties.

On those adjustnents, six in all, the
first two relate to "Conditional Expenses."
Those items of expenditure are with respect
to Facilities and 800 Building - First Floor
Renovations in the amunt of $7,075,000 and
the 800 Building - Stair Tower Renovation in
t he ampunt of $316, 000.

Both of those were referenced in
M. Morgan's testinmony for the Public
Advocate and PGW agrees to those adjustnents

on a conditional basis as specified in the
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"Description of Adjustnments” in the docunment
t hat was circul at ed.

| would be hopeful that we can mark
as a hearing exhibit today the "Summary of
Adj ust ments Agreeable to PGW and perhaps
attach that to the transcript. W shared
t he adjustnments with the stenographer.

MR. BALLENGER: We have no
obj ections, the Public Advocate has no
objections, to including that as an exhibit.

MR. DASENT: Okay.

MR. McDOUGALL: Likew se.

MR. DASENT: Thank you.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Let's just
mark the exhibit. |'m not sure what number
exhibit this would represent for PGW

MR. DASENT: Why don't we call it PGW
Hearing Exhibit 1, if the Hearing Exam ners
find that to be appropriate. Hearing
Exhibit 1 | think mkes sense for today.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Okay.

(Wher eupon the above-descri bed

document was marked for identification

Veritext Lega Solutions
215-241-1000 ~ 610-434-8588 ~ 302-571-0510 ~ 202-803-8830




© 00 N oo o A~ w N PP

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R R
A WO N P O ©O 0O N O O B W N +—» O

Page 10

pur poses as Hearing Exhibit 1.)

EXEC. DI R. McCLENDON: And just so
t hat everyone is aware, we are keeping a
running track of all exhibits that have been
submtted at this point.

It is our expectation that we will be
circulating the briefing meno by no | ater
than cl ose of business tonmorrow and you'l
receive the conplete, as of the close of
t oday, Exhibits List that we have, the
Comm ssion has, at this juncture either
| ater today or along with the briefing meno
tomorrow and that will have the final
official title for all exhibits up to this
poi nt .

You may proceed.

MR. DASENT: Thank you.

Just to conclude on the various
adjustnments, in addition to the "Conditi onal

Expenses, " we have listed "Adjustnents to
Expenses" and the third line or row
desi gnated there is the "A&G Adder (Gas

Processing)."
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This matter canme up during discovery
and there's a downward adjustnment to the
budget of $84,000 for that particular line
I tem

"Upgrade Expander Pl ant H20 and CO2

Anal yzers," there's a downward adj ustnment of
$574, 000, and that was acknow edged in the
response to HE-1 and al so referenced in
M. Morgan's testinmony.

The "Cal cul ati on of Total Footage and
Wei ght ed Average Cost per Linear Foot" was
raised in M. Kleinginna's testinony. It's
a downward adjustnment of $1,205,100 and it
was referenced in POANER Statenment 1 at 4-5
and it is explained in detail by PGWin the
footnote or "Description of Adjustnments.”

"Policy Recommendations,"” we have
"Capital Program Protocols"; and al though
there is no anount of adjustnents, the
Prot ocol amended | anguage relates to
cybersecurity issues.

The Advocate recommended stream i ned
| anguage in that section, so did PGWN but

PGW wi || acquiesce to the edits that were
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proposed by M. Ballenger for the Public
Advocat e.

It only addresses cybersecurity
emergencies or really enmergencies in
general, but just recognize that we as to
that particular issue are in agreement with
t he Public Advocate and our Legal Departnent
at PGW signed off on that.

We will brief the other issues, which
have to do with Capital Budget
reaut hori zation. W have no agreenent as to
that particular issue as of right now, but
we think at PGWthat that change al so needs
to be made.

That's the sumtotal of the
“Condi tional Expenses" and "Adjustnents to
Expenses" that we propose to accept at PGW
and hopefully POAER and the Public Advocate
w || agree.

EXEC. DI R. ©McCLENDON: Thank you,

M . Dasent.

M. Ballenger, just going down the

list, PGWhas indicated that they've

accepted your changes related to the two
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projects for the 800 Buil ding.

Are you okay with that and, if so,
noting that this does appear on the agenda,
if there is agreement on this matter, can
that item be rempved from today's agenda?

MR. BALLENGER: | do still have one
poi nt of followup today on the 800 Buil ding.
As far as the conditional spending
recommendati on, that's what we put into
testinony so we are fine with that. But |
do have just one, really just one, question
| think about the 800 Building and it
relates to the budgeted anount for fiscal
2024. But those two things, that should be
a much shorter conversation.

EXEC. DI R. M:CLENDON: Okay. So
because you do still have that outstanding
gquestion, we'll |eave that on the agenda as
M. Cassidy isn't here nowto try to address
it.

Wth regard to the other agreed-upon
adj ustments that PGW has offered, do you
have any comments or thoughts with regard to

t hose?
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MR. BALLENGER: Yes:; and it's not to
the stipulation as nmuch as it is just sort
of clarification of where we are overall in
this proceeding.

As to Line 3, the "A&G Adder," | just
want to flag that that adjustnment as
depicted in M. Mrgan's testinony applies
to other projects that we have taken a
position on the merits about.

So that adjustnment, you know,
essentially is a calculation adjustnment, but
we still have proposals related to the
underlying merits of the three different
projects shown. That would be the Ivy Hill
project, the H 1 heater upgrade, and the
boil off gas conpressors.

So we're not changing any of our
substantive positions by presenting that and
by agreeing to that adjustnent in ternms of
cal cul ati on only.

The only other thing that | wanted to
comment on is that ny understandi ng and |
think M. Morgan's understandi ng was that

the other issue with the Protocols regarding
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line itemextension or line item
reaut hori zation was an issue that we were
hopi ng woul d be deferred to subsequent
conversations or workshop or sonething of
that nature led by Gas Comm ssion Staff.

| say that because | am not sure
whet her the Hearing Officers can provide any
information to help us see through that and
where we may save sone tinme on the brief if
that is an issue that is not really ripe for
a decision in this Capital Budget
Proceedi ng.

EXEC. DI R. McCLENDON: And |'m not
| ooking at the transcript fromthe ID

session so | can't speak confidently to

this, but | thought -- and, Ms. Wishi nske,
pl ease weigh in -- | thought that we said
that we were giving everybody until, | feel

like | said, after today's hearing to submt
I i ke what they propose as | anguage after our
conversation that we had.
Am | m staken regarding that?
HEARI NG EXAM NER WUSHI NSKE: | think

that's accurate. But | also recall, as
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M. Ball enger stated, that we di scussed

wor kshopping this issue. So | don't know if
t hat was discussed in tandemw th briefing
it, but I do remenmber the discussion that it
m ght be hel pful for us all to sit down and
see where we end up with reaching a

resol ution.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Well, we had
the neeting, the side neeting, and the
conversation about it and Conmm ssion Staff
shared their thoughts on how to proceed, and
| thought that we had said that we would
i ke to see | anguage and the subm ssion of
| anguage woul d come after today's hearing
and we would take it fromthere.

MR. BALLENGER: But al so that was
related to the emergency circunstances
change in the Protocols, | thought.

EXEC. DI R. M CLENDON: No. | thought
it was --

MR. BALLENGER: Maybe |
m sunder st ood.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: | thought it

was for both because Comm ssion Staff did
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make the suggestion regarding a m ddle
ground about how to approach this issue that
does not undermne City Council's authority
to approve budgets but also provided sone
flexibility and we were | ooking for thoughts
regardi ng | anguage that kind of went towards
t hat .

So the suggestion was that when it's
a reauthorization for tinme only, because the
Protocol s already concern | anguage t hat
allows for |onger |ifespans than two years,
per haps the answer was if it's a
reaut hori zation for tinme, when the request
comes and it's denonstrated that it's just
for time, it automatically beconmes a
three-year |ifespan project, which keeps it
in the budget year in which the project was
originally approved, thereby negating the
need to go back to City Council because
under | yi ng budget dollars are not changi ng;
but, also, you know, it doesn't underm ne
it. So we were |ooking for |anguage of what
peopl e thought about that.

Since there's confusion about it,
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after this we will send out an emnil, but |
think that we were | ooking for |anguage from
the participants on what they thought that
something |like that m ght ook like. [If we
can kind of do that, we can nove forward.

MR. DASENT: Should we do that as a
part of the briefing process, just include a
section on that? It doesn't have to be
ext ended.

EXEC. DI R. McCLENDON: I nmean, |
think at this point, yes, that's what we're
going to have to do. |It's going to have to
be kind of briefed.

MR. DASENT: Okay.

EXEC. DI R. M CLENDON: Bear with nme
one nonment. Soneone is trying to enter the
nmeeting, but I'"'mgoing to have to let them
know about the nane situation, so please
bear with me for one second.

Good norning, C "' m not sure what
your nane is. Wen you have a nmonent,
pl ease add your full nanme to the screen.

They're still connecting to audi o.

My apologies; | amwaiting for them
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to connect to audio to be certain that they
can hear ne.

C, good norning. As you just joined
us, you didn't hear the announcenent made
earlier. W need to have your full nanme
di spl ayed for the record. So if you could
take the tinme to please add your nane, we
woul d greatly appreciate it. Thank you.

Goi ng back to the original agenda
item the stipulations, is there anything
el se related to that that we need to
di scuss?

As we said, we're going to have the
i ssue regarding the reauthorization. That
will be briefed. Comm ssion Staff w ||
reiterate what we think m ght be a workable
way to address this issue as a part of our
briefing meno so that all participants know
what to respond to.

Is there anything else, M. Dasent,
related to that?

OCh, wait; |'msorry.

M . MDougall, because one of PGW s

agreed-upon adjustnents related to one of
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your issues.

MR. M:DOUGALL: Thank you,
Ms. McCl endon.

Yes, we had an opportunity to take a
| ook at the adjustment. You know, it's
simlar to M. Ballenger's coment: W have
a position on the nerits in addition to our
anal ysis of the cal cul ati ons.

M. Kleinginna testified that the HP
mai n addition line item should be disall owed
on the grounds that it has not been
substantiated in accordance with the Capital
Program Protocol s and al so anal yzed t he
cal cul ati ons according to the fornmulas PGW
proposed and found the error in it.

So that's the sort of high-Ievel
position of POVNER on that. | don't believe
this adjustnment can resolve the substantive
position of M. KIeinginna.

| also wanted to comment briefly, the
nunber is a little bit different than the
nunber that M. Kl einginna reached and I
just want to make sure M. Kl einginna has

time to | ook at that before sort of
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comenting further on it.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Well, as you
not ed, you have substantive issues, so that
confirmation of the nunmber can be addressed
as a part of that.

So, M. Dasent, is there anything
el se you have on this?

MR. DASENT: As relates to
stipul ations, nothing further.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Okay. Then
nmoving on to the next topic on the agenda,
we have new | oad addition with M. Tene.

Whenever you're ready, M. Dasent,
you may proceed with your w tness.

MR. DASENT: Good norning, M. Tene.

MR. TEME: Good nor ni ng.

MR. DASENT: | want to speak with you
this norni ng about new | oad additions and
what |'ve characterized as | oad growth
proj ects.

Now, POVMER, M. Kleinginna in
particul ar, has proposed a series of
adjustnments related to | oad growth. These

are Priority IV projects. POWAER nmai ntains
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that these projects should be disallowed in
l'ight of the requirenments of the Capital
Program Prot ocol s.

And just to be clear, this series of
adjustnments relates to main additions, neter
and regul ator additions, service additions,
and neter additions.

Do you agree in this context with
M. Kleinginna s recomendati on?

MR. TEME: No, | do not agree wth
M. Kl einginna' s recommendati on.

MR. DASENT: Can you expl ain?

MR. TEME: Sure. PGWin its
di scovery responses -- they were factual
responses at the time they were witten --
did not say that we don't have a reasonabl e
expectation that contracts will be signed
during the course of the fiscal year. |
think it's nmore of a timng issue.

PGW al so showed that a reasonabl e
return on investment can be expected and is
done as a matter of course during the
econom ¢ anal ysi s eval uati on.

So we do not agree with

Veritext Lega Solutions
215-241-1000 ~ 610-434-8588 ~ 302-571-0510 ~ 202-803-8830




© 00 N oo o A~ w N PP

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R R
A WO N P O ©O 0O N O O B W N +—» O

Page 23

M. Kleinginna' s recommendation on this
matter.

MR. DASENT: Now, just to get a
little more specific, with reference to the
Protocols, Part 3, Subpart (b)(4), it states
in relevant part that a proposed line item
assigned a Priority IV status shall be
substantiated by a showing that a
contractual comm tnment has been, or is
reasonably certain to be, secured during the
budget year and that such comm t nent
prom ses an acceptable return on investnent.

Have | stated the requirenents
accurately?

MR. TEME: That's correct.

MR. DASENT: Now, the Protocols also
in that same subpart go on to state that if
the comm tnment and/or analysis of investnent
Is not yet available, the line item my be
consi dered for conditional funding of a
di screte project if there's a reasonable
i kel i hood that a contractual conmm tnent
i ndi cati ng an acceptable return on

investment will be secured during the budget
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year.

Agai n, have | captured the rel evant
provi sions of the Protocol?

MR. TEME: Yes, that's correct.

MR. DASENT: Okay. Now, is there a
reasonabl e |ikelihood that a contractual
comm tment will be secured for the |oad
growth projects listed in the Capital Budget
filing at Pages 511 through 5137

MR. TEME: Yes, there is.

MR. DASENT: Ckay. Now, Is PGW
required to have a contract at hand with
related return on investnent analysis at the
time of budget hearings for budget approval
to be appropriate?

MR. TEME: No.

MR. DASENT: Now, are |load growth
projects approved in every Capital Budget
based upon a reasonable |ikelihood that a
contract conmm tment indicating an acceptable
return on investment will be secured during
t he budget year?

MR. TEME: That's correct.

MR. DASENT: Okay. And Rule 10
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requires these budgets and expenditures to
be based upon a reasonable return on
investment; am |l right?

MR. TEME: Yes, that is correct as
wel | .

MR. DASENT: Okay. That's all | have
on this issue. The witness is tendered for
Cross.

MR. McDOUGALL: Thank you,

M. Dasent.

M. Tene, sort of starting with the
HP main contracts as addressed in
M. Kleinginna' s testinmony on Page 3, if we
take the adjusted figure that M. Kleinginna
cal cul ated of $2,752,402, can you wal k us
t hrough how PGW has determ ned that there's
a reasonable certainty that [ oad growth
contracts will be executed during FY '25 in
t he anount of dollars specified for that
l[ine itenP

MR. TEME: So PGW uses historical
data based on actuals and | cannot speak to
t he exact dollar figure, but what | can say

is that because it's based on observed or
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actual data, PGWis recommendi ng that short
of every new business in the City not
requiring natural gas for its business

pur poses, our homeowners as well as
bui |l ders, that we will see the observed
trend of actuals as used during the budget
process.

The second component of that is that
as we get closer to the window that we're
di scussi ng, then the Marketing Depart ment
does an econom c anal ysis and an estinmate is
prepared as part of that process.

So while the budgeting process uses
actuals, which | believe is a very good
i ndi cator of the potential or of what's to
conme, PGWdoes also do its duty, if you
will, to ensure that these projects have a
return on investnment as required.

| hope that answers your question.

MR. McDOUGALL: Thank you.

And just to confirm these line itens
are requested for full approval for
i mredi ate spending; is that correct?

MR. TEME: From a budgeting purpose
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perspective; yes, | nean.

MR. McDOUGALL: So any return on
i nvest ment anal ysis would only be performed
after full spending authorization has been
obt ai ned; is that correct?

MR. TEME: More likely than not; yes.
And the reason | say that, sonmetinmes
depending on the timng, so as we get closer
to the fiscal year starting, we may have
started an econom c analysis at that point
as wel | . But a year, a year-and-a-half,
sometimes even two years in advance is
typically unreasonabl e because projects, as
we get closer, you would expect to do an
econom ¢ anal ysi s.

MR. McDOUGALL: Okay. Well, to
confirm according to your discovery
responses, PGW has not executed any | oad
growt h contracts in association with the
funds requested for authorization for FY
' 25.

So in terms of this budget, PGWis
seeking full approval for spending on | oad

growth line itenms while not having perfornmed
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any return on investnent analysis for those
funds.

MR. TEME: That is correct, again,
due to the timng of the budget process,
that it's done so far in advance.

MR. McDOUGALL: Okay. That's
hel pful .

| would like to go through sone of
your discovery responses. Do you have
avai |l abl e PONER-I1-47?

MR. TEME: Gve nme a mnute to find

MR. McDOUGALL: Absol utely.

MR. TEME: Okay. Yes, | have it.

MR. McDOUGALL: Ckay. Thank you.

So just as a followup, in the |ast
sentence of the question there is a question
about whether any written PGW policies exist
t hat address the use of payback periods for
anal ysis of load growth capital investnents.

| didn't see a direct response to
that in the witten response. Can you
confirm whether there are any written PGW

policies that exist that address the use of
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payback periods for analysis of |oad growth
capital investnents?

MR. TEME: Certainly, M. MDougall
and you'll see the response in the request.
It's stated in the sentence before the |ast
one: "These are found in PGWs Tariff
referred to as Rule 10," and that's what we
referred to during the discussions as well.
So it is in the response.

MR. McDOUGALL: Okay. And just to
confirm there's no other written policies
ot her than what's in the text of Rule 10
t hat address this issue?

MR. TEME: Frankly, you know, there
may be ot her documents, but this is what PGW
refers to when we do an accounting
eval uati on.

MR. McDOUGALL: Okay. Would you be
able to check on whether there's other
docunents and provide themif there are?

MR. TEME: Sure. Yes.

MR. McDOUGALL: Okay. Appreciate it.
Thank you.

And there's also a question about the
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use of exceptions to the payback peri ods.
Can you wal k us through how PGW det er m nes
t hat an exception is appropriate?

You nmentioned that exceptions may be
used when a project is atypical. If you
coul d just elaborate on what woul d make a
project atypical for this purpose.

MR. TEME: Sure. So as we say, this
is a good exanple, maybe an industri al
custonmer that has a process-related rather
than a heat-rel ated | oad demand, that woul d
nmore or less fall into the atypical.

So as nentioned during the hearing,
we see a certain anmount of | oad hours.

M. Kleinginna, | think, had requested
during one of the sessions as to how we
determ ne the projected revenue to offset
inflation costs. So that would be an
exanpl e.

We woul d have a better understanding
of the custonmer's expected operating hours,
if you will, from an equi pnent standpoi nt
and then we would evaluate it fromthat

per specti ve.
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MR. McDOUGALL: Okay. Thank you.

| would like to turn to POAER-25, if
you have that handy.

MR. TEME: Yes.

MR. McDOUGALL: Okay. So in your
response you noted that the majority of
projects are smaller and do not require the
use of different nethodol ogies to eval uate
the return on investnment.

So just to clarify, when you say
“different methodologies,"” is it correct
t hat what you mean there is methodol ogi es
ot her than sinple payback?

MR. TEME: That's correct.

MR. McDOUGALL: Ckay. So, you know,
as you say, smaller projects, sinple payback
is the approach. And how would you define
"smal |l er projects"?

MR. TEME: | guess the nore
appropriate word, M. MDougall, would be
standard. But smaller would be typically
commercial or residential-type projects. So
these would fall into more of the standard,

typi cal evaluations, | think would be the
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nore appropriate word to use.

MR. McDOUGALL: Okay. When you put
the term"smaller” in your response, what
did you mean by that? Did you nmean smaller
in terms of the PGW expenditure or the gas
t hroughput or some other metric?

MR. TEME: Typically the throughput.

MR. McDOUGALL: And that's throughput
on an annual basis?

MR. TEME: That's correct.

MR. McDOUGALL: Okay. And what did
you have in mnd as a threshold for annual
gas t hroughput bel ow which it woul d be
consi dered a small er project?

MR. TEME: Say 5,000 Mcf or |ess.

MR. McDOUGALL: COkay. So when a
project is above 5,000 Mcf, it would require
use of a different methodol ogy according to
your response. So can you wal k us through
how you woul d identify what the appropriate
met hodol ogy woul d be under those
circumst ances?

MR. TEME: Yes. And, again, just to

clarify, it's not necessarily that
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particul ar threshold, M. MDougall, from
5,000 Mcf. It would be atypical or

nonst andard, and it would be a net present
val ue.

So we have, as | nentioned earlier,

I ndustrial because even an industri al
customer doesn't nean that it's 10,000 or
above 5,000. It could be 4,000 Mcf froma
t hr oughput st andpoi nt.

In that case we could or we would use
a different method -- for exanple, a net
present value -- rather than a sinple
payback met hod.

MR. McDOUGALL: Okay. Can you
explain what's the difference between an
atypi cal or nonstandard project and a
project that would be above this 5,000 Mcf
t hreshol d?

It sounds |ike there's a distinction
in how you're thinking about it and you're
sharing, if | understand you correctly, that
nonstandard is the better sort of yardstick,
and can you add a little color on how you

determ ne when a project is standard or
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nonst andard, if not by annual Mf?

MR. TEME: Sur e. So, again, it's not

nore of a throughput. |It's nore of an end
use, if you will. Right?

So one of the reasons that |'m using
the term"standard"” is if a custoner,

whet her it's residential or comrercial or,
say, industrial, if they're using the
facility for heating or, rather, the

equi pnment for heating the facility as well
as expected hot water needs and such, that's
nore of a standard project.

If the end use is nore of a
process-related or a different type of
application, then, again, that would be an
atypi cal or nonstandard, and that's what |
mean by that.

MR. McDOUGALL: And can you wal k us
through why it is that the custonmer end use
of the gas has inplications for how PGW
anal yzes the return on investnent?

MR. TEME: Sure; because, again, as
mentioned, if it's a standard use, let's say

heater, hot water heater, range, then
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there's sort of a reasonabl e expectation
that it's utilized over a certain number of
hours per year. | think there was a sim | ar
gquestion to M. Kleinginna's |ast request
during the | ast hearing.

So we want to do our due diligence
and ensure that the custonmer is both being
treated fairly in terns of getting the rules
applied correctly while also ensuring that
rat epayers are not on the hook for anything
above and beyond what's expected to be
applied to this particular customer for | oad
gr owt h.

MR. McDOUGALL: Okay. Well, if
there's seemngly sonme differences in the
amount of gas that is consunmed based on the
end use, would that not be captured in
| ooki ng at the annual Mf consunption?

MR. TEME: Yes, it woul d.

MR. McDOUGALL: So then can you
expl ain why you don't use annual Mcf
consunption but, instead, are sort of
devel oping a sort of standard versus

nonst andard franmewor k?
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MR. TEME: It's, again, sonething
t hat doesn't fit the typical nmethodol ogy,
M. MDougall. | nmean, sinmply that's
basically it. So we sit down with the
custonmer and get a better understandi ng,
again, so that the rules are applied nore
accurately, if that makes sense.

So the Mcf is driven by the | oad
hours as well; correct? So we just want to
make sure that, again, we're applying it.

Anot her exanmple, Year 1 they may
expect to use, say, 2,000 Mf. Year 2 they
may use a different pattern. So, again,
sometimes the fornmula and the methodol ogy
that we use may not easily conformto the
cal cul ati on.

| hope that clarifies it a bit nore.

MR. McDOUGALL: Thank you. Yes, it
does. That would illum nate matters.

|f there's going to be a
substantially different annual Mf over a
series of years, it would be difficult to
treat Mcf annual consunption as fixed and do

annual cal cul ati ons based on that.
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Can you give an exanple of what kind
of end use would result in a substantially
di fferent Mcf consunption over the initial
years of the project?

MR. TEME: Off the top of ny head, |
cannot. But as | said, again, the majority
of projects that PGW eval uates, as |
mentioned in nmy testinony, probably about
90% and even above, 95% typically fall into
t he standard eval uation, so a sinple payback
type.

And, again, this is to allow, from an
eval uati on standpoi nt, another project that
doesn't easily fall into the cookie-cutter,
if you will, type of evaluation that we do
for the majority of the projects.

MR. McDOUGALL: Okay. And is there
an exanple you can recall of a nonstandard
project?

MR. TEME: | can follow up after this
nmeeting and send an exanple of a project
t hat doesn't necessarily fall into this
cat egory.

MR. McDOUGALL: Okay. That woul d be
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very hel pful.

Woul d you be able to send the Rule 10
cal cul ation sheet so that we can see how the
cal cul ations were done?

MR. TEME: Sure.

MR. McDOUGALL: That woul d be very
hel pful . Thank you.

Ckay. And so you've nmentioned net
present value and there's also on the Rule
10 forms a section on internal rate of
return analysis, and | wanted to ask if
there's any difference between how PGW
under st ands those terns.

MR. TEME: | can provide a witten
response. But with sone projects, again,
goi ng back to evaluating sort of your
cooki e-cutter versus atypical, sonmetines
it's easier to use net present value. W
al so have a m nimum threshold we | ook at
froman IR standpoi nt.

So, yes, | can provide a witten
response in followup to your question.

MR. BALLENGER: May | request that

maybe that be taken as a TR and, Devin, if
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you could sort of articulate just
specifically what you would |ike to have
responded to, that m ght be hel pful.

MR. McDOUGALL: Thank you,
M. Ball enger.

HEARI NG EXAM NER WUSHI NSKE: | think
that's a good idea, M. Ballenger.

Al so, | wanted to ask, M. Tene, how
l ong do you think it would take? -- because

| know we have a briefing deadline com ng

up.

MR. TEME: Probably within a day or
so.

HEARI NG EXAM NER WUSHI NSKE:  Ckay.
Thank you.

MR. McDOUGALL: Okay. And to circle
back and distill the question, as

M. Bal | enger hel pfully suggested, the
question is: M. Tene, you've shared that
for nonstandard projects PGWuses a net
present value analysis. On the Rule 10
calculation forns there's a reference to
internal rate of return anal ysis.

Coul d you explain how PGW under st ands
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the definitions of these terms and what, if
any, difference there is between them and
how t he analysis is perforned for each?

MR. TEME: Yep. We'IlIl provide a
response.

MR. DASENT: And this can be
designated TR-1. [|I'm not sure where we are.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: That woul d be
TR- 1.

MR. McDOUGALL: If we're marking TRs,
as M. Ballenger helpfully suggested, there
was a question that | had about an exanpl e
of a nonstandard project fromthe |ast few
years and M. Teme had hel pfully offered to
provide a Rule 10 form corresponding to an
exanpl e of a nonstandard project. So that
may be TR-1 and that | atter question nmay be
TR-2. Apol ogi es.

MR. TEME: Okay.

HEARI NG EXAM NER WUSHI NSKE: | think
t hat makes sense. | have them marked as you
descri bed, M. MDougall.

MR. McDOUGALL: Ckay. Thank you.

M. Tenme, | wanted to just circle
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back to some of your initial coments today.

You shared that you do have a
reasonabl e expectation that | oad growth
contracts that correspond to the | oad growth
line item amount that PGW has sought
aut hori zation for will be executed during FY
' 25.

| was wondering if you could wal k us
t hrough on what basis you have that
reasonabl e expectati on.

MR. TEME: Certainly. So certainly
| arge projects -- and that's primarily, |
t hi nk, what you're referencing -- PGW and
its customers do engage in advance in terns
of discussions froma |oad growth
per specti ve.

So, again, these discussions may | ast
a year, sonmetinmes two, sonetinmes |longer. So
usi ng sone of that information, that's how
we devel oped the list of projects that we
put on there. So that's how we antici pate
and see, again, in discussions with
custoners, that these projects are

reasonably expected to cone to fruition.
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MR. McDOUGALL: Okay. So if |
under stand you right, you're referring to
the list of projects in the Marketing
forecast section of the budget filing; is
that correct?

MR. TEME: That's correct.

MR. McDOUGALL: COkay. Go ahead.

MR. TEME: If | may add?

MR. McDOUGALL: Pl ease.

MR. TEME: It's also based upon
actual observations of | oad growth requests
over the years. And, again, it is budgeted
in the Capital Budget process that it is
reasonably expected that these projects or a
certain numober, if you will, froma | oad
growt h perspective, would come through on an
annual basis.

MR. McDOUGALL: Okay. Yes. My
guestion does concern the specific anount
t hat PGW has requested to be authorized for
i medi ate spending in the | oad growth
categories M. Kleinginna identified and ny
under standi ng i s based on discussions in the

| D sessions as well as the cal cul ati ons
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provided in the budget filing itself, of
course, that the dollar anmpbunts requested
for high-pressure main additions, 8" and
smal l er, 12" and |arger, customer neter and
regulator, 1-1/4" and smaller, 2" and | arger
meter additions, that those dollar nunmbers
were derived through a historical averaging
process based on the dollar spending that
PGW reported for those budget categories in
the last three to five years.

s that correct?

MR. TEME: That's correct.

MR. McDOUGALL: Okay. And with
regard to the projects that you discussed in
the Marketing forecast, did you nodify the
nunbers for any of the line itens that |
just discussed away from what was out putted
t hrough the averagi ng process based on any
information fromthe Marketing forecast?

MR. TEME: The two are two separate
processes, if you will. The Marketing
forecast is more of an informational here's,
you know, sone of the expected | arge

projects and here's what's to be expected
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based on sone observations; whereas the
Capi tal Budget, again, in some ways is nore
granul ar based on observed act ual

i nformati on.

MR. McDOUGALL: Under st ood.

Just to clarify, my question is that
t he budget categories we discussed, those
nunmbers for which PGWis seeking
aut hori zation were exclusively derived
t hrough a historical averaging process; is
t hat correct?

MR. TEME: That's correct.

MR. McDOUGALL: And no information
fromthe Marketing forecast was used to
alter those nunbers?

MR. TEME: | nean, | am not certain.
| can ask Ms. DelLussey to what extent sone
of the Marketing | oad forecast is used in
t he actual historical data. But, again,
they were done for two different purposes.

MR. DASENT: We can direct that
gquestion to Ms. DelLussey if you'd like. |
believe she is in the room W can do it

after M. Tene is concl uded.
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MR. McDOUGALL: Sure. That woul d be
hel pful .

Ckay. And so to circle back, the
| oad growth line itens were devel oped
t hrough a historical averaging process and
the Marketing forecast is a separate process
which is for informational purposes and it's
i nformed by the conversations that PGW has
with potential custonmers; is that correct?

MR. TEME: That's correct.

MR. McDOUGALL: Okay. And --

MR. TEME: Sorry, M. MDougall. It
al so uses other data sources, the Marketing
| oad forecast. So it |ooks at some of the
aggregate categories, you know, residential
rate class, commercial, and so on.

MR. McDOUGALL.: Can you say nore on
how t hat process works?

MR. TEME: Sure. It's nore the
hi storical at the class |evel, so the
hi ghest | evel.

As nmentioned, part of the forecast
t he budget uses as part of the discussion

I's, you know, simlar to this one. But over
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the years it has changed and ot her
i nformati on has come into the Marketing | oad
forecast.

| think M. Ballenger had a sim|ar
question in ternms of how, if you will, the
GCR Proceedi ng versus this Capital Budget
Proceedi ng, how they're simlar or
different, if you will, in certain
cat egori es.

MR. McDOUGALL: COkay. So would you
mnd turning to Page 514 of the Capital
Budget filing, which concerns the projected
mai n and service installations of greater
t han $50, 000?

MR. TEME: | amthere

MR. McDOUGALL: Okay. Can you
explain, for the category of projected main
and service installations, what line itens
does that include?

MR. TEME: You nean through Line 267?
| ' msorry; is that your question in terns of
Page 514 or --

MR. McDOUGALL: Well, so for the main

and service costs, does that incorporate
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spending from the high-pressure main
additions, 8" and smaller, 12" and | arger,
1-1/4" and smaller, 2" and |larger, so all of
those line item categories would be included
here?

MR. TEME: | would say yes.

MR. McDOUGALL: Okay. And then has
PGW performed any projections for the main
and service installations that are equal to
or small er than $50, 000?

MR. DASENT: Could you repeat the
gquestion? |'msorry.

MR. McDOUGALL: The reference page
contains a table of projections for main and
service installations that are greater than
$50, 000.

My question is: Has PGW perfornmed
any projections regarding main and service
installations that are equal to or |ess than
$50, 000 during FY '25?

MR. TEME: These are projections,

M . McDougal | .
MR. McDOUGALL: Okay. | understand

t hat these projections concern spending
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greater than $50,000. Has PGW perfornmed any
projections for spending that's equal to or
| ess than $50, 0007

MR. TEME: Oh, I'msorry. There's
quite a few requests that come through on a
regul ar basis. So we don't have sort of a
simlar list, if that's what you're asking.

But there are quite a few requests,
probably in the hundreds, if not nore, that
are in the queue. So it's not as easy to
pull some of that information together given
t hat each project is done on an individual
basi s.

MR. McDOUGALL: My question is: How
does PGW sort of think through its market
forecasting for these smaller projects? |Is
it your position that no forecasting is
done, that it's too hard to tally them up,
or if they're not --

MR. TEME: |'msorry; |'ve gotcha.
| " msorry; | thought you meant laid out in
this particular format.

So, no, as part of the Marketing and

Sal es forecast, sonme of that information is
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eval uated as wel | . Agai n, we |l ook at both
hi story as well as spending forecasts off of
sonme of those observed val ues.

| thought you neant whether we had a
simlar |ayout of the greater than 50 for
the | ess than 50 discussion.

MR. McDOUGALL: Well, | would be
interested in that if you have it. But also
if you have it in another format, that would
al so be of interest.

MR. TEME: We can definitely take a
| ook. Again, because the data lies in
multiple systems, that may actually take
some time to aggregate and put together, but
we can certainly take a | ook.

MR. DASENT: [|f | can observe,

Ms. McCl endon and Ms. Wishi nske, it just
seens like this is discovery being
undertaken during the hearing and because of
the tinmeline for getting briefs done and
doi ng the other things that we nust do for
the briefing schedule, I'mnot sure all of

t hese things can be acconplished; for

exanple, if we're tal king about over 100
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smal | er projects.

And |I'm not also sure of the
useful ness of that sort of granul ar
analysis. |If M. MDougall has a | onger
timeline, that may be different, but for
pur poses of this hearing | don't see that we

necessarily can do that.

But M. Tene can correct me if I'm
wWr ong.

MR. TEME: That's correct,
M . Dasent.

MR. McDOUGALL: Yes. M. Dasent, |
certainly understand the concern. You know,
my questions are to understand the basis for
M. Tene's testinmony today, which is that
the Marketing | oad forecast is part of the
basis for the reasonabl e expectation.

In the witten response to
PONER-11-11 there was a statenent that there
are no expected | oad growth contracts for FY
25 as of this writing.

And the question al so asked for any
expected contracts, please explain the basis

on which you expect it will be executed and
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the financial specifics by which you can

determ ne there will be a positive rate on
return, and the only response was: "There
are none."

We're hearing today that there is a
reasonabl e expectati on of executing
contracts and it's based on the Mrketing
forecast. However, the Marketing forecast
is inconplete and only considers projects of
greater than $50, 000.

So to understand the responses
of fered today, we need to know what
projections, if any, have been performed in
t he devel opnent of the budget for projected
mai n and service installations of less than
$50, 000.

MR. TEME: M. MDougall, if | may
interject, the "none" refers to executed
contracts, and so that's what that's
referencing. So if we don't have any
executed contracts, that's what that's nmeant
to cover; right?

And in ternms of timng, we can sort

of guesstimate, but we can't predict the
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timng of certain contracts because they're
customer-driven, taking a bunch of factors
into account: market conditions, interest
rates, and so on and so forth. | can't say
with certainty that this contract is
expected in this nonth or this date.

But the "none" was meant to respond
to executed, signed contracts.

MR. McDOUGALL: Okay. So in
PONER-11-10 there was a questi on about
whet her any contracts have been executed and
your answer woul d be responsive to that.

In POANER-11-11 there is a question
about -- well, I'll read it: "Please |ist
all load growth contracts that PGW has not
yet executed but expects to execute during
FY ' 25 budget year which would result in
using funds from any of the belowlisted
line itenms?" And it goes on to ask if you
can share the specifics of the expected
contracts.

And the answer to that question was
al so: "There are none as of this witing."

So that's why I'masking if you're
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sort of sharing today that you do expect
there to be contracts. That's a little
different fromwhat we saw in the witten
response. |'mjust trying to understand
t hat .

And, you know, if the answer is that
as part of the preparation of this budget
there were no projections prepared for mains
and services and other load growth |ine
items other than what's listed in the
Mar keting forecast, that's a responsive
answer, too. |I'mjust trying to understand
what the process was.

MR. DASENT: |'m hoping that --
sorry.

EXEC. DI R. McCLENDON: Sorry.

' mgoing to have to interject here
because while we certainly did start |ate
due to some technical issues and things of
that nature, we are getting way, way past
our schedul e.

Some of these questions are, to ny
ears, sounding |like discovery questions.

That does not nean that they don't need to
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be answer ed.

| am going to ask, please, you know,
M. MDougall and M. Dasent to weigh in:

Is it possible for this conversation to
continue offline so that we can nove forward
with the rest of this agenda?

We do have quite a few topics that we
need to address. We want to give nembers of
the public a chance to speak. So as |I'm
| ooking at this, we have allotted between 30
and 15 m nutes for each topic. |'mpretty
sure that we're probably way beyond that on
this issue at this point. And we want to be
m ndf ul of everyone's tinme, including the
menbers of the public who have joined us
here.

So can these questions be taken
offline? -- obviously, you know, in a
relatively timely fashi on because briefs are
due on March 8th.

MR. DASENT: From ny perspective it
can be taken offline, and we'll also
endeavor to help with witten responses so

that there will be sonmething to brief.
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EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Pl ease. That
woul d be great.

M. MDougall, if you can submt your
questions in witing, PGWN if you guys could
respond in witing, that way everyone that
is on the Service List and charged with
briefing these i ssues have these full
di scussions. But we can kind of nove
forward with today's agenda.

MR. DASENT: Right. And |'m m ndf ul
also of the short tinmeline for briefing. So
as long as we can juggle all of that, we're
open to that, but | wanted to be as clear as
possi bl e on that issue.

| have one question, though, for
M. Tenme before he | eaves us.

MR. BALLENGER: | have some in this
area as well; not a lot, but I do have sone.
But you can go ahead, Andre.

MR. DASENT: M. Tenme, |'m not sure,
but let's confirmthat PGWis open to
condi tional funding as an alternative
because as a practical matter we don't spend

anything on |load growth projects until we

Veritext Lega Solutions
215-241-1000 ~ 610-434-8588 ~ 302-571-0510 ~ 202-803-8830




© 00 N oo o A~ w N PP

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R R
A WO N P O ©O 0O N O O B W N +—» O

Page 56

have contracts and until we have the return
on investnment anal ysis.

So we operate as a practical matter
within the Capital Budget Protocols or
Capital Program Protocols, and | just wanted
to confirmthat in the alternative
condi ti onal funding authorization for these
projects is acceptable.

MR. TEME: Yes, it is.

MR. DASENT: Okay.

MR. TEME: Yes. To your point,

M. Dasent, by its very nature these
projects or this funding is al nost
conditional in the way that we operate as we
eval uate each project as it cones through
and | ook at the various requirenents. But,
yes, the answer is that it is acceptable.

MR. DASENT: Thank you. That's all |
have.

MR. BALLENGER: Yes. | do prom se,
"1l try to be brief.

But, M. Teme, you brought up a
response to PA-CB-45 and | just wanted to

ask a coupl e questions about that, if I
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could. Do you have that in front of you?

MR. TEME: | do, M. Ballenger.

MR. BALLENGER: Okay. So just going
t hrough and what we were trying to do is
really understand the basis and sort of the
di fferences between the various projections
of throughput, in Part A we asked about
met hodol ogi cal differences; and if |
understand from your response, what | think
| see is that you are identifying sone
differences in presentation as well as sone
di fferences in timng.

Are those really the primary
di fferences?

MR. TEME: For the nost part; yes.
And | think you had al so asked, there was
i ke about a 12 Bcf difference between the
two and | think the main reason for that was
the one custoner, the GIS custoner.

MR. BALLENGER: GTS, right, right.
got that. And you were kind enough to share
that during the ID.

MR. TEME: Yes.

MR. BALLENGER: But for purposes of
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both of these forecasts, you would use sone
common data, customer accounts, usage per
custonmer, degree days. All of that would go
into the m x for purposes of these
projections, wouldn't it?

MR. TEME: That's correct.

MR. BALLENGER: COkay. And so | think
the main difference that | picked up on
this -- and | just want to check with you

and make sure | understand -- is that

putting aside the GIS, the main difference
here is the starting point.

When we | ook at the GCR, we're
| ooking at fiscal '22; and when we | ook at
your budget, we're | ooking at fiscal '23.
That seens to be the main difference.

Am | right about that?

MR. TEME: Correct.

MR. BALLENGER: Okay. So | just
wanted to ask you, you know, M. Morgan took
a position in testinony that a single year's
data really isn't a reasonabl e basis for
li ke a five-year projection.

Do you agree with that and, if not,
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why not ?

MR. TEME: Well, so | just want to
clarify to your point, M. Ballenger, that I
believe with respect to PA-CB-45, it was
about two years ago for that filing, versus
the nost recent year; and they are a | ot
closer, so | just wanted to nmention that in
terms of the discrepancy.

So, again, the two different tines
and it is mentioned in the response, part of
the issue is that custonmer account, degree
days vary, as you know, dependi ng on
starting points. They can have different
outconmes from a projection perspective. So
" mnot sure if that answers your question.

MR. BALLENGER: Yeah. ' m sorry; |
probably should have brought it up a little
differently.

So what we were | ooking at in
testinmony -- because we didn't have tine to
| ook at this carefully before testinmny was
due, but what we | ooked at in testinony --
was the data included in the budget, which

i ncludes basically a forecast over five
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years at the same anount of throughput. So
your budget year and your forecast years
showed a consistent |evel of usage over
time.

And M. Morgan | ooked back at prior
years' budgets and saw that in each one of
t hose your throughput was different, it was
actually declining over the past three
years, and what he has testified was that he
didn't think it was reasonable for your
budget and in your forecast to project the
exact same anmount of usage in the five-year
peri od.

And he specifically said that you
shoul d use data-driven trends to project
what your forecasted throughput would be
just for budgeting and forecasting purposes
here in this setting; not in your GCR

And | just wanted to give you a
chance to respond to that, as to whether you
agree; and, if not, why not.

MR. TEME: We can certainly take a
| ook and | believe in one of the prior

di scussions, | think that's one of the
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things that | had nmentioned as well, that we
are |l ooking at the Marketing | oad forecast
and how it's aggregated and utili zed.

So PGWis not opposed to that,

M. Ballenger. | just wanted to point out
that the two filings essentially are done
for different purposes and different tinme
frames.

So, yes, we're not opposed to | ooking
at the forecast and you're absolutely
correct, froma tineline perspective we do
see a drop fromthe usage. But al so, again,
fromyear to year that can fluctuate, go up,
down.

MR. BALLENGER: Yes.

MR. TEME: But we can certainly take

a |l ook and, again, that's one of the things

that we are evaluating. |It's not a one- or
two-week project. It's probably a
mul ti-nmonth project, M. Ballenger, in terns

of taking a |look at how it applies to this
hearing or this Capital Budget process.
MR. BALLENGER: Right. And, you

know, full disclosure, we weren't expecting
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you to redo the forecast for this
proceeding. | think we were really | ooking
at how this forecast is put together for
future proceedings.

MR. TEME: Yes.

MR. BALLENGER: So with that, | think
we can nove on, unless M. Mirgan has any
guesti ons.

MR. MORGAN: | don't.

MR. BALLENGER: Or | assune
M. Kleinginna, if he had questions, would
junp in.

Ckay, good. Thank you. That's all
we have in this area.

MR. DASENT: You are on nute, Genel a.

THE COURT REPORTER: Genela, you are
on rmnut e.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: My apol ogi es;
| was saying thank you, M. Teme, for your
time.

W will at this point nove on to the
next topic on the agenda, Gas Processing.

s M. Cassidy avail abl e?

MR. CASSIDY: Yes, |'m here.
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EXEC. DI R. McCLENDON: Ckay.

Ms. M gatz, can you swear M. Cassidy in?

(Wher eupon the above-identified
wi t ness, Daniel Cassidy, was sworn.)

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Thank you.

M. Dasent, you may proceed.

MR. DASENT: Thank you.

Good norning, M. Cassidy. | wanted
to explore with you this morning three areas
in the Gas Processing area and | think we
have a stipulation on the Facilities
adj ustments, but there nmay be one questi on,
as | understand it, for followup on the
First Floor Renovations by M. Ball enger.

My first question deals with the
repl acenent of a heater and additi onal
st andby generator at the Ivy Hill Station.

The Public Advocate proposes that
funding to replace the heater at Ivy Hill be
approved on a conditional basis and that
funding for a standby generator be

di sal | owed.
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Do you agree with this
recommendati on? And you need to break it
out into two parts obviously.

MR. CASSIDY: No, | do not agree with
t he recommendati on.

MR. DASENT: Okay. Now, with respect
to the conditional funding for the heater,
can tell me what the reasoning is behind
your di sagreenment ?

MR. CASSIDY: So the heater is
required to maintain safe and reliable gas
service throughout the northwest part of the
City.

There are a couple comments made in
t he Advocate's response, one of which was
t hat we had not shown a docunent about the
backup, the need for a backup, with the
gener at or.

So since ny previous testinmony | did
verify that it's not only common practice
for PGWto have that in place but also it's
very conmmon in the natural gas industry in
the United States for that practice as well.

And then there was anot her comment, |
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was asked about whether we can operate the
station manually if we | ost power, and |
wanted to verify or further clarify that
st at ement .

So it is possible, but it's not
ideal. It would take tine to get soneone
out to the station to man the station.

| n addition, that person woul d have
to be in constant communi cation with sonmeone
in our Gas Control Center, which woul d
require a lot of time for that person. |If
there are nore failures than at a single
point in the system we don't have personnel
to cover that.

Additionally, if the heater fails and
it's cold, the station will need to be shut
down because we cannot operate the station,
peri od, so there would be no need for a
person because we would not be able to
operate the station.

I n sunmary, we need reliable backup
systenms to ensure supply to our custoners
and sending a person to the station to

operate it is a |last resort.
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MR. DASENT: How old is the heater
you're repl acing?

MR. CASSI DY: 50-plus years old.

MR. DASENT: And why is the timng
important in terms of the budget this year?

MR. CASSI DY: Because the heater has
reached the end of its useful life. [It's
the ol dest heater in our system

MR. DASENT: Do you plan for
mul ti pl e-point |oss of operation on PGW s
syst enf?

MR. CASSI DY: W do. But, again, we
try to have backup systens in place so that
we have options when those things occur.

MR. DASENT: That's all | have on
this issue.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Thank you.

MR. DASENT: The witness is avail able
for cross. Thank you.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: M. Ball enger?

MR. BALLENGER: Yes. Thank you,

M. Cassidy. Just a couple of questions.

It sounds |i ke based on your first

st at ement about having sort of gone back and
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done nore investigation that you did a
little more homework on having the backup
gener at or.

Do you have something to show us for
that? You nentioned it being comon in the
i ndustry. Can you show us sonet hing that
woul d hel p us understand what that's based
upon?

MR. CASSIDY: | don't have anything
to show, but | can say that we had
conversations with our gas suppliers,
Transco and Texas Eastern, and they
indicated that it is a conmon practice, not
just for us, but for other gas conpani es.

MR. BALLENGER: One of the pieces
that | think M. Morgan | atched onto and |
just want to confirm that nothing el se has
happened in this regard was that PGW didn't
present any vendor pricing for the
repl acenent costs for the heater.

Do you have anything else to show
regardi ng your pricing and any vendor
esti mates that you have received?

MR. CASSI DY: We do. So when we
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submt our estimates in the Capital Budget
package, we generally don't supply vendor
quot es.

But in this case we did receive a
quote in 2022 froma vendor for the heater,
whi ch was approxi mately $225,000. That
nunmber was escal ated to $250, 000 for the
estimate for this job for the fiscal year
subm ttal.

MR. BALLENGER: Okay. |'m not
exactly sure where we are in the TRs, but I
think it would be hel pful just to cover the
record if we have a TR to supply that vendor
quot e.

EXEC. DI R. McCLENDON: It woul d be
TR-3 at this point. Can you provide the
conmpl ete | anguage for the question so that
we make sure that we're answering what it is
t hat you want.

MR. BALLENGER: Sure: A vendor quote
for the Ivy Hi Il heater replacenment.

MR. DASENT: Got it.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Okay. And,
again, that is TR-3.
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MR. BALLENGER: Thank you.

Just to run this to ground, at the
time we spoke before, you didn't have any
specific data on fuel savings. |'m assum ng
t hat that has not changed because you don't

have a baseline with which to conpare this

heater. |Is that still true?
MR. CASSIDY: That's still true, yes.
MR. BALLENGER: OCkay. | will allow

M. Morgan, if he has any additional
questions, I'll ask himto please ask them
MR. MORGAN: | don't have any.

MR. BALLENGER: Okay.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Okay.

MR. BALLENGER: Thank you. I think
that's all we have on the Ivy Hill project.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Thank you.

M. MDougall, | don't believe that
you addressed this, and |I'm not | ooking at
your testinmony. Do you have anything on
this issue?

MR. McDOUGALL: That is correct, | do
not have any questions at this tine.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Okay. Thank
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you very mnuch.

Then the next --

MR. DASENT: We have anot her --

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: |'m sorry.

MR. DASENT: We have a few
adjustments in this area for M. Cassidy.

EXEC. DI R. M:CLENDON: Okay.

MR. DASENT: The second one deals
with the H-1 heaters.

EXEC. DI R. McCLENDON: Ckay.

MR. DASENT: So turning your
attention, M. Cassidy, to the upgrade to
the H-1 heaters at Richnond, the Public
Advocate reconmends that the project to
upgrade H-1 heaters be disall owed.

M. Morgan specifically indicates
that the consultant's report -- and I'm
referring to the UNI FLUX Exot herm report --
provi ded to support the project only
recommends that two H-1 heaters be repl aced.

Do you agree with M. Mrgan's
recommendati on?

MR. BALLENGER: Can | actually

correct you there? 1It's not replacenent of
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the heaters; it's replacement of the
controls on two heaters.

MR. DASENT: That's right, an upgrade
of the H-1 heaters. [I'msorry; you're
right.

M. Cassidy?

MR. CASSIDY: | do not agree.

MR. DASENT: Okay. Now, can you
expl ain why you do not agree?

MR. CASSIDY: Yes. So the report
that | supplied was basically only referring
to that specific part of the request and we
did not, in fact, ask that technician to
comment or give us any expertise/feedback on
any of the other reconmendati ons.

So | did submt a matrix in response
to PA-CB-7 regardi ng the upgrades that we
have requested showi ng the reason for all of
t hose upgrades.

| wanted to point out that the
heat ers have all been replaced since the
1970s when they were originally installed
and the ol dest of those replacenents

currently is fromthe 1990s.
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So PGW Engi neering and Gas Processing
personnel reviewed all those heaters and
determ ned that other upgrades are necessary
based on safety and reliability concerns.
And, again, those were summarized in the
mat ri x.

| just wanted to point out that, you
know, PGW Pl ant and Engi neeri ng personnel do
have expertise and experience inhouse to
determ ne these types of replacenents.

MR. DASENT: That's all | have on
this issue. The witness is available for
Cross.

MR. BALLENGER: Thank you.

Just to be clear, you nentioned the
response to CB-7. Are you referring to the
estimate detail for the H- 1 heater upgrades
t hat was attached to PA-CB-37?

MR. CASSIDY: |'mpretty certain |I'm
referring to PA-CB-7, which is provide a
mat ri x and/ or consultant report on H-1
heat er upgrades. And | did supply the
consul tant report and the matrix in response

to that. | believe that's correct.
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MR. BALLENGER: We checked and we did
not receive a matrix other than what's
appended to PA-CB-37. So I'mgoing to
assune that's what it is.

MR. DASENT: | think that is exactly
what you think it is, M. Ballenger.

MR. BALLENGER: Okay. Yes. It's an
estimte, the estimator is E. Wckley-0d sen,
and it's approximtely three pages, | think,
or four pages. |It's fairly extensive. So |
do believe that we have that and it totals
to a 2-mllion-or-so-dollars-and-change
pr oj ect .

So | wanted to ask a coupl e of
questions and one of the things that |1've
rai sed offline to M. Dasent is a question
as to whether or not the UNI FLUX Exot herm
report should retain its confidenti al
treatment. | don't personally see anything
confidential there. | don't know if PGW has
made a deci sion regarding that or has --

MR. DASENT: We have. We have. |
have authorization to lift the confidenti al

status and I will renmpove it fromthe
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appendi x so that you can brief fully the
i ssues, including the technician's coments
| was concerned about. | was di sabused of
the need to have it treated confidentially.

MR. BALLENGER: Ckay. That's
hel pful .

So | think starting fromthe report
t hat was provided, | just wanted to confirm
a coupl e things.

The technician who prepared the
report, the UNI FLUX report, that person
wor ks for the manufacturer of these heaters;
isn't that right?

MR. CASSIDY: That's correct.

MR. BALLENGER: Okay. And | would
assunme then that that person is pretty
know edgeabl e about the technol ogy that
t hese heaters rely upon and how to upgrade
and mai ntain them over tinme.

Woul d you agree with that?

MR. CASSIDY: | am not sure because |
t hi nk the purpose of that report was just to
test the fuel systens of the heaters at that

time for that annual checkup. But that
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person may only be an expert in those areas.
| would have to check to see if the person
is expert in all areas of the heaters.

MR. BALLENGER: Okay. So al though
don't know that everyone is sort of in
possession of these at the nonment, |I'm
| ooki ng at one of the docunents appended at
the end. |It's a functional test
certificate. Can you explain what a
functional test certificate acconplishes?

MR. CASSI DY: Again, this is specific
to the heater fuel train and firing; and
that certificate verifies that the heater or
the heaters are, in fact, rating froma
bur ner perspective appropriately.

MR. BALLENGER: Okay. So there are a
whol e bunch of different things that appear
to be checked on these and if | | ook at the
H- 1A heater conpared to the H-1B heater, one
of the main differences that junps off the
page is that the A heater does not have
SMARTLI NK control valves and the H-1B heater
does have SMARTLI NK control valves, and that

was the basis for the recommendation to
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repl ace those control val ves.

Do you agree with that?

MR. CASSI DY: Yes.

MR. BALLENGER: All right. And the
same would be true then for | believe it's
H-1E, or is it F? H-1E.

MR. CASSI DY. Yeah, | believe it's E,
correct.

MR. BALLENGER: Likew se, okay.

Ckay. So, again, when | then | ook at

- and |I'm

the matrix that you provided
going to try to find it here on ny
m ni -screen -- that would be one aspect of
the matri x and that would be what's shown in
H- 1A, installation of SMARTLI NK MRV contr ol
i nterface.

s that correct as well?

MR. CASSIDY: This is a MAXON
SMARTLI NK item correct.

MR. BALLENGER: Okay. Let ne see. |
just wanted to check one nore thing.

So there are sone other boxes checked
when these functional test certificates are

performed, |ike signals to customer and
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signals from custoner.

Those are presunmably not directly
related just with firing the heater and
maki ng sure that it's working appropriately.
Woul d you agree with that?

MR. CASSIDY: | don't have that in
front of me so | --

MR. BALLENGER: COkay. Okay. Fair
enough. It was confidential up until a few
m nutes ago so it's probably not reasonabl e
to expect you to be carrying it around.

"1l stop there and see if M. Morgan
has any questions or M. MDougall or
M. Kl einginna.

MR. MORGAN: No questions from ne.

MR. McDOUGALL: No questions. Thank
you.

HEARI NG EXAM NER WUSHI NSKE:  Thank
you.

M. Kl einginna, do you have questions
for M. Cassidy?

MR. KLEI NG NNA: No, m'am

HEARI NG EXAM NER WUSHI NSKE:  Ckay.

Thank you.
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M. Dasent, anything further for this
Wit ness?

MR. DASENT: Not on this issue. |
have one nore issue, though, the boil off
gas conpressors at Passyunk.

HEARI NG EXAM NER WUSHI NSKE: Ckay.

Pl ease go ahead. Thank you.

MR. DASENT: M. Cassidy, turning
your attention to the replacenment of the
boil off gas conmpressors at Passyunk, the
Public Advocate is not convinced that the
conpressors should be replaced at this tine
based in part on the | ow nmai ntenance costs
i ncurred since 2018.

The Advocate suggests in the
alternative that conditional funding m ght
be approved for this project.

Do you agree with M. Modrgan on this
I ssue?

MR. CASSIDY: | do not.

MR. DASENT: Can you explain why?

MR. CASSIDY: Yes. So these
reci procating conpressors, which are in

cryogeni c service, have been in service for
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50- pl us years and have certainly reached the
end of their useful life.

The fact that recent maintenance
costs do not reflect enough spend in the
eyes of the Advocate is not related to the
reason why we're asking for replacenent.

The reason is that these units have
been in service for a long tinme, many with
mllions and mllions of cycles of
operation, and a failure of repeated stress
after 50-plus years could occur and result
in, for exanple, a cracked housing on one of
the conpressors. This would require
repl acenment.

Since it takes over a year to replace
a unit, we would be without one of the two
boil off conpressors at that tine.

And | want to note that at times --

(Interruption in the Zoom neeting.)

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Oh, ny God. |
am so, so sorry about that. | don't know who

t hat person was. M sincerest...
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"' m sorry; please give ne a nonen

because that was absol utely appalling.
was absolutely appalling. |'m mking a
report right now.

MR. DASENT: M. Cassidy --

EXEC. DI R. M:CLENDON: ' m sorry,;

ahead, M. Dasent.
MR. DASENT: M. Cassidy may have

seen worse. |I'mrem nding nyself of the

80

t
That

go

Wat er Departnment hearings recently. So just

so you know, sone. Things happen and we
under st and your reaction.

M. Cassidy was saying it takes a
year or nore to replace these BOG
conpressors and that's one of the issues
that's presented. And if he can pick up

fromthere.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: M. Cassidy,

if you can continue.

MR. CASSI DY: Okay. So it takes
a year to replace a conpressor and | wan
note here that over time, because of
conditions in the tank, that we need bot

conpressors operating; and if we didn't

over

t to

h

have
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bot h conpressors operating during those
times, we would have to vent gas fromthe
tank in order not to allowit to

over pressuri ze.

So the key point here being that we
want to, you know, order the conpressors and
get themon site and replace them before we
get into a situation |ike that.

MR. DASENT: Now, there are two
phases to this project, as | understand it.
One is to get the boil off gas conpressors
in place and the second is related to the
housi ng for the conpressors.

Can you explain that a bit nore?

MR. CASSI DY: Ri ght . So we did
submt the estimate just to purchase the
compressors with backup information in this
subm ttal because that is our requirenment.

Ri ght now we have an estimte for
fiscal year '26, which would be, again, the
piping in the building to house the
conpressors and connect theminto the
system

So the plan is to order the
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conpressors, get themin a year plus, and in
t he meantime perform engi neering work to do
the design for the second phase so that we
can better estimate that and come back in
fiscal year '26 with a nore refined estimate
wi th backup information for that second
phase.

MR. DASENT: Now, the housing and
instal |l ati on/ Phase 2 of this project, are
they the sorts of things PGW has done
routinely in the past?

MR. CASSI DY:  Yes.

MR. DASENT: And is the bulk of the
expenditure for the boil off gas conpressor
or for the housing and installation?

MR. CASSIDY: Right now we have
4.94 mllion in Phase 1 for the purchase of
the conmpressors and we have 6.84 mllion
approximately for the Phase 2 installation.
So the bulk is Phase 2 right now.

MR. DASENT: OCkay. That's all |
have. The witness is tendered for cross.

MR. BALLENGER: Thank you.

So | take it that there is no change
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to the confidential designation of the

Li sbon Group. | did raise an issue there,
but | note that it purports to be
proprietary information of that firm So |
just want to confirmthat PGWIis maintaining
t he confidential designation.

MR. DASENT: We are.

MR. BALLENGER: COkay. That makes it
alittle harder to ask questions, but |I'm
going to do it anyway, carefully. Okay?
And | don't have a lot.

| think one of the things | just want
to confirmis M. Morgan testified about
what this is and | think you said this
earlier, M. Cassidy, but this report is
intended to estimte the capital costs
associated with replacing the boil off gas
conpressors; is that correct?

MR. CASSIDY: That is correct.

MR. BALLENGER: And isn't it also
correct that this report considers two types
of replacement projects?

MR. CASSIDY: It does.

MR. BALLENGER: Ckay. One of them
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has a projected capital expense of a little
more than 3 mllion, another has a projected
capital expense of a little nmore than

8 mllion.

s that al so correct?

MR. CASSI DY: Yes, that sounds
correct.

MR. BALLENGER: Can you tell us which
of the two PGWis trying to do of those two
projects?

MR. CASSI DY: So we picked the
| ower -cost option, which was approximately
$4.3 mllion of |ower costs, than the
hi gher-cost option or the cryogenic-rated
units. We picked the | ower-cost option,
where a system could be installed with the
| ower - cost conpressors.

MR. BALLENGER: COkay. And | think
what M. Morgan testified about was not
being able to really get fromthe Lisbon
Group's estimate to PGW s budget esti mate.

MR. CASSI DY: Correct.

MR. BALLENGER: |s that sonmething you

can help with?
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MR. CASSIDY: Yes. So the report
states a cost of $1,882,000 for the
conpressor cost. We escal ated that by
approximtely 4% to get to the $1, 956, 300
number that's in the estimte.

MR. BALLENGER: Okay. And that's the
equi pnment cost. What about the rest of the
project costs in the '25 Capital Budget?

MR. CASSIDY: So that is the only
pi ece that comes fromthe Lisbon report. So
the construction costs as well conme fromthe
Li sbon report and | think they're pretty
straightforward except for they are likely
escal ated as well.

MR. BALLENGER: | see. So the other
conmponents of the capital expenditure
sunmary i ncluded in the report, you've also
escal ated those for purposes of determ ning
your budget?

MR. CASSI DY: Correct.

MR. BALLENGER: Okay.

Andre, | don't know if you have the
report in front of you.

MR. DASENT: | do not. But go ahead.
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| didn't realize |I would need it.

MR. BALLENGER: W thout revealing
specifically what's in there, there's a
tabl e on Page 4 that includes the various
cost conmponents that Lisbon utilized and I
think M. Cassidy was tal king about as the
equi pnent cost was escal ated and these
vari ous other conmponent costs were
escal at ed.

Wuld it be possible to get a
depiction of how those costs were escal ated
for purposes of the '25 Capital Budget
starting with what's shown in Case 1 in the
Li sbon report and culmnating with PGW s
budget nunbers?

MR. CASSIDY: We can clarify.

MR. DASENT: You're asking for a
written response on that?

MR. BALLENGER: Yes. | would | ove
that to be designated TR-4.

So the --

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: |'m sorry; can
we get a conplete fornulation of the

question or the request?
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MR. BALLENGER: Yes. Provide a table
showi ng escal ating Lisbon Group's Case 1

cap ex summary to PGW s budget request for

fiscal '25.
Does that make sense? | hope that
makes sense, Bill and M. Cassidy,

M. Gallagher and M. Cassidy.

MR. GALLAGHER: Not a problem

MR. CASSI DY: We understand, yes.

MR. BALLENGER: Okay. Great.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Okay. Thank
you.

MR. BALLENGER: And one other thing |
wanted to check, although the Lisbon sunmmary
does say that the Phase 2 -- and I'm
par aphrasi ng, of course, because it's
confidential -- would require sone
refinements, nmy understanding from | ooking
at this was that this was a full projection
of the cost of the project.

Am | correct about that?

MR. CASSIDY. It's a projection of
the cost but at a | ower-level design. So we

woul d need to do nore design to get nore
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confortable with the details of what woul d
be required to finish the job.

MR. BALLENGER: Well, okay. It just
strikes me that the total project costs that
you' ve sunmarized are, you know,
$11.5 mllion or so and this consultant's
report gets you maybe, you know, 25% of the
way there.

MR. CASSIDY: Well, it's for estimate
pur poses and, again, this is next year's
estimate. We asked themto do an initial
| evel of design to get us an indication of
what the costs will be.

To further refine that number woul d
requi re nore engineering and we woul d
recommend that we do nore engineering to,
again, get a better nunber for next year's
subm ttal.

MR. BALLENGER: And woul d you agree
that if PGW s budget and this project is
approved in fiscal '25 for Phase 1, that
basically it would not have the ability to
scal e back or reconsider the project for

Phase 2 and whatever costs PGW may project

Veritext Lega Solutions
215-241-1000 ~ 610-434-8588 ~ 302-571-0510 ~ 202-803-8830




© 00 N oo o A~ w N PP

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R R
A WO N P O ©O 0O N O O B W N +—» O

Page 89

at that tinme?

MR. DASENT: Wait a mnute. That
asks for a hypothetical because we don't
even have the nunbers yet.

MR. BALLENGER: Well, that's part of
the concern, that's part of the concern, is
that as M. Morgan testified, | think, you
know, we don't have the full cost of this
project at this tine.

And | do appreciate M. Cassidy
gi ving us your best estimates for Phase 2
sitting here today. But wouldn't you agree
t hat those costs could change for Phase 2,
it could be nmore or less than the
6.84 mllion you identified?

MR. CASSIDY: So the price that we
provi ded for Phase. 2 is based on, again,
prelimnary engi neering froman experienced
vendor that we believe is indicative of what
the final nunmber will be. But we are just
stating that we need to refine that nunber
for the foll owi ng phase.

And, in fact, this is a critical

infrastructure replacenent so we intend to
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do our due diligence with Engi neering and
get as close as we can to the correct nunber
and expect it to be close to the number that
we have provided for Phase 2.

MR. BALLENGER: Okay. | think that's
all 1 have on the boil off gas conpressors.
| want to make sure that Lafayette and POWER
are okay.

MR. MORGAN: | have one question.

A couple of tinmes, M. Cassidy,
you've nentioned that there will be
refinements and then you al so nention about
getting better engineering for the second
phase.

VWhy not wait until we have better
nunbers before submtting this project?

MR. CASSI DY: Because of the |ead
time on the conpressors. We need to get the
conpressors ordered because it takes over a
year to get them

MR. MORGAN: Ckay. Thank you.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Is there
anything else on this topic?

MR. DASENT: Nothing else in Gas
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Processi ng.

MR. McDOUGALL: No questions from
POWNER, Ms. McCl endon. Thank you.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Okay. Thank
you.

Then if there's nothing el se on Gas
Processing, we will nmove to Facilities, and
| guess the easiest way to do this instead
of our standard procedure woul d be,

M. Ballenger, if you could just go ahead
and pose your question to M. Cassidy.

MR. BALLENGER: And it may honestly
be a M. Gallagher question as well, so |I'm
open to whoever can answer it.

But at the first 1D session we talked
about the 800 Building projects that were
included in the 2024 Capital Budget and ny
recoll ection was that no work had been
performed and, in fact, PGWconfirmed it had
no i ntention of spending or opening a work
order regarding those Capital Budget |ine
items fromfiscal 2024.

And the reason why | bring that up is

that | noticed in PGW s authorizati on
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spendi ng report that there has been
expenditure fromthe "Lobby I nprovements”
line item I|ess than $10,000 so not a | ot,
but | just wanted to sort of wrap that

t oget her and understand what's going on

t here.

| f you could please explain what the
expendi tures were for, that would really
hel p us.

MR. CASSIDY: | can answer that.

The expenditures were for sone
engi neering work and it was not supposed to
be put in that account, so we are going to
transfer that out of that account.

MR. GALLAGHER: Since we don't have a
capital project, it would be put against an
operating expense.

MR. BALLENGER: | kind of expected it
was for engineering since you cane in with a
conceptual design. So that's all | have on
t he 800 Building. Thank you.

EXEC. DI R. McCLENDON: Okay. Thank
you very nuch.

And t hank you, M. Cassidy.
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The next topic is Mscell aneous
Server, Network, and Hardware Additions with
Joanne Kelly and Shane Mayo. | believe both
have joi ned us.

So, Ms. Mgatz, if you could swear
t hem bot h in.

(Wher eupon, the above-identified
wi t nesses, JOANNE KELLY and SHANE MAYO, were
sworn.)

MR. DASENT: If | may proceed,

Ms. McCl endon?

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Yes.

MR. DASENT: Okay.

"1l direct the questions to
Ms. Kelly, but let ne treat you as a panel
if you don't mnd. So if you can harnonize
wi th one anot her or answer or suppl enment
each other's responses, that's fine.

| ' mgoing to direct your attention to
M scel | aneous Server, Network and Hardware
Addi ti ons and my question is: The Public

Advocate recommends reducing the contingency

Veritext Lega Solutions
215-241-1000 ~ 610-434-8588 ~ 302-571-0510 ~ 202-803-8830




© 00 N oo o A~ w N PP

N NN NN R R R R R R R R R R
A WO N P O © 0O N O O B W N —» O

Page 94

funding in the |I'S budget in this area.

| nstead, the Public Advocate
i ndi cates that the COO conditional funding
is available for I'S for such conti ngency
expenses should they arise.

Do you agree with this approach for
your budget ?

MS. KELLY: | do not.

MR. DASENT: Okay. Can you explain
why ?

MS. KELLY: Sure. So PGW has
routinely included a line itemfor
contingencies in the IS budget.
Contingencies are basically earmarked for
unf oreseen needs that we would not be able
to forecast 18 months in advance; for
exanple, failing hardware or software that
may need to be inplemented due to a pay
poi nt that needs to be resol ved.

So this is something that we have
done many years, always had contingency
noney in there for hardware and software,
just due to the fact that we can't al ways

f orecast when we'll need it so we ear mark
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some funds in case sonme unforeseen events
happen.

MR. DASENT: Are these expenditures
subject to sort of any restrictions or would
you need to necessarily make these
expendi tures should the need arise in the
Conpany?

| n other words, sometines there are
restrictions on how you use conditiona
funding and the timng of the use of
condi tional funding.

| suspect that you have made these
expenditures routinely in the past. Help me
understand if | amright or wong in that
assunpti on.

MS. KELLY: We have used these funds
routinely in the past and usually, like |
said, |I'll take hardware, for exanple, let's
say we have a server that is malfunctioning
and we need to replace it or it's not under
warranty anynore, sonething along those
| ines, or, you know, software that needs to
be updated, you know, we typically pull from

t hese funds for anything that's unforeseen
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and wasn't planned that we have other |ine
items for.

MR. DASENT: Thank you very nuch.
That's all | have. The w tnesses are
avai |l abl e for cross.

MR. BALLENGER: | don't have any
further questions about this issue.

M. Morgan, do you have any
addi ti onal questions?

MR. MORGAN: No, | don't.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Okay.

M. MDougall, do you have any
gquestions on this, even though you didn't
address this in your testinony?

MR. McDOUGALL: Yes, that's correct,
POVWER has no questions. Thank you,

Ms. McCl endon.

EXEC. DI R. M CLENDON: Okay. Well,
M. Dasent, if there is nothing else on this
particular topic, we will nmove forward to
Fi el d Operations.

MR. DASENT: | believe Kelly DelLussey
has joined us. | thought |I saw her earlier.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Yes.
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Ms. DelLussey you were here at the
start of the neeting, correct, and you were
sworn in?

MS. DeLUSSEY: That's correct.

EXEC. DI R. McCLENDON: So you can
proceed, M. Dasent.

MR. DASENT: Good norning, first of
all.

MS. DeLUSSEY: Good norni ng.

MR. DASENT: | believe we're stil
t here.

| wanted to discuss the Distribution
cost escalation with you this norning.

The Advocate proposes to |ower the
escal ation used in the Distribution budget.
It specifically proposes using a 2.4%
inflation rate rather than the 4.6%
inflation rate that is referenced in the
budget by PGW

Can you explain, first of all, how
you apply these escalation rates, is it one
or two years, and give us sonme of the
particul ars behind the use of escal ation

rates in the budget?
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MS. DeLUSSEY: Sure. [In the
cal cul ation of Distribution's Capital Budget
for main and service additions and
replacements PGWprimarily uses a historical
approach to | ook at average historical
spendi ng by year and average footage
installed for each main and service
repl acenent and addition category.

In order to escalate the historical
costs to present-day prices, PGWuses the
CPI for urban consuners for our area,
Canmden, W I m ngton, and Phil adel phia, to
escal ate when it's avail abl e.

When it's not, such as the exanple
t hat was pointed out in testinmny for fiscal
2024, PGW escal ates the historical prices to
present-day prices by utilizing the
budgeting factor that's provided by PGW s
budgeti ng section.

So in the case of escal ating 2023
costs to 2025 costs, PGWutilized the 4.63%
escal ation factor that was agreed upon and
used in PGWs 2024 Capital Budget filing,

plus the 2.1% escal ation factor that was
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used for PGWs 2025 Capital Budget filing.

This is the sane net hodol ogy that has
been used in the past several years for
Di stribution's Capital Budget cal cul ations
and has seemed to identify the expenditures
needed to fund PGW s capital programpretty
closely to what the needs are.

MR. DASENT: M. Gallagher, can you
direct us to where in the budget filing the
reference is made to the 4.6% factor and the
2.1% factor used in 20257

MR. GALLAGHER: These are both
provided in our kickoff letters for the
fiscal years.

The 4.63, what we did was | ooked at
t he Congressional Budget Office and we cane
up with a three-year average because we were
concerned about the prices. You know,
hi storically we had been using 2.4 as far as
t he general escalation factor. But what was
happening with the pandem c, we were very
concerned about the way that the prices were
goi ng, so we used an average.

The Congressional Budget Office,
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their actual was 4.7. They were forecasting
fiscal '22 at 6.1% and fiscal '23 at 3.1 to
give us 4.63% as the conposite we used for
t he budget.

And that is very conservative when
you take fiscal 2022 | believe was only 6.1%
and | think the actual came in probably in
the 8, 9 percent increase of actual
expenses. So it was very conservative as
far as that was concerned.

And as you can see, for 2023 we went
back to, 1I'Il call it, a nore general 3.1%

MR. DASENT: Okay. The kickoff
letters are included in the filing at around
Page 486, just so everyone can have the
clarity that Bill shared with me earlier.

MR. GALLAGHER: That is correct.

MR. DASENT: Okay. That's all we
have. The wi tnesses are tendered for cross.

MR. BALLENGER: Okay. Thank you.
Just a couple of questions.

| haven't | ooked at the page in the
budget filing that M. Dasent just referred

to, but the 4.63%is | believe a famli ar
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nunmber. Isn't that the sanme catchal
adj ustment that PGW used for certain cost
items in its nost recent base rate case?

MR. GALLAGHER: That is correct.
There was nothing specific. This was the
escal ation factor that we used.

MR. BALLENGER: Okay.

MR. GALLAGHER: | think in the rate
case there was a discussion about this and a
| ot of our expenses have specific ones, sonme
of the maj or ones. Labor, PGW I abor, is
based upon the Union contract. Field test
was a special study. Healthcare was a
speci al study.

So a lot of them at |east the
Operati ng Budget is taken by specific
escal ation factors. |If there is no one out
there, then this is the one that people use
as far as that's concerned.

MR. BALLENGER: Okay. And as |
recall correctly, that catchall applied to
somewhere around 20% of PGW s esti mated
operati ng expenses.

MR. GALLAGHER: Subject to check, |
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believe that is correct.

MR. BALLENGER: Okay. And |I'm just
| ooking at the data response. | have too
many tabs open so | can't get to it very
qui ckly.

Ckay. And | guess what I'mtrying to
understand is if that was applied to sort of
the mnority of operating expenses, why
would it be appropriate to apply it sort of
across the board in Distribution? Can you
explain why that would be appropriate?

MR. GALLAGHER: 1It's a general nunber
as far as that's concerned and, you know,
we've used it in the past and it's been
accepted as far as the general escal ation
factor.

MR. BALLENGER: Okay. Are you
fam liar with how the PUC came down on that

particul ar assunmption, that escal ation

factor?

MR. GALLAGHER: | don't think it was
too successful. | think they argued that
there should be no escalation factor, if I'm

not m st aken.
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MR. BALLENGER: I think, yes. |
believe they said it was unsupported, but
they did not allow it and | think I can
| eave it at that.

That's all | have on this issue.

M. Morgan or POWER?

MR. MORGAN: Nothing further from ne.

MR. McDOUGALL: No questions from
POWNER. Thank you.

EXEC. DI R. McCLENDON: Ckay.

MR. DASENT: Ms. McCl endon, just one
foll owup because | have heard M. Gall agher.

M. Gallagher, if you recall, in the
fiscal '24 Operating Budget was an
escal ation factor of 4.63% approved by the
Phi | adel phia Gas Comm ssi on?

MR. GALLAGHER: | assume by approving
our budget it was incorporated in there.

MR. DASENT: And so subject to check,
yes?

MR. GALLAGHER: Yes.

MR. DASENT: All right. Thank you.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Thank you.

|s there anything else remaining in
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the area of Field Operations, M. Dasent, or
is that everything?

MR. DASENT: | think that's it.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Okay. Thank
you, Ms. DelLussey and M. Gall agher.

The next topic is the issue of
Prot ocol changes, which we kind of did begin
to touch upon earlier.

M. Ballenger, | know that you
circul ated your suggested | anguage and in
the earlier discussion regarding PGW s
agreed-upon adjustnent, subject to |egal
signoff, PGW agreed to accept the changes
with regard to the cybersecurity issue.

Just to confirm that's correct from
all sides?

MR. DASENT: That's correct.

EXEC. DI R. M CLENDON: Okay. So then
the remaining issue is the issue of
reaut hori zation, and | think that when we
had t he Zoom conference, | guess at this
point it was two weeks ago --

MR. DASENT: It seens | onger.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Yes, two weeks
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ago, on the 13th -- | guess there was sone
m sunder st andi ng about what was happeni ng.

M. Dasent, | will go ahead and | et
you kind of take the lead on this, but I
think what ultimately is going to happen is
the issue on reauthorizations will have to
be briefed. But you can proceed,

M . Dasent.

MR. DASENT: Well, we have basically
summed up our position in the filing. [It's
on Page 4 under Attachnment A, And it
i ndi cates very sinmple | anguage that we think
i's appropriate for budget reauthorizations.

The policy underlying all of that I
think is sort of the wrinkle, as opposed to
the drafting. The drafting the Public
Advocate and nyself can probably come to a
resolution on relatively quickly. But the
underlying has to do with are we yielding
authority or is the Comm ssion yielding
authority that otherw se should reside in
City Council.

We're suggesting and | think the

el egant solution was to follow the | ead of
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the PGC Staff, which suggested that it just
automatically revert to the longer 1ifespan,
which is well within the authority or at

| east we have used that approach respecting
City Council's prerogative and exercising

al so adm nistrative prerogative that sort of
makes sense because City Council doesn't
under stand why we're com ng back for a
time-only change in the budget.

And it seems like it makes it nmuch
nmore clear and much nore adm nistratively
feasi bl e, having gone through this a nunber
of times in the recent past, where there is
no nmoney changi ng, no increased spendi ng
authority asked for, only we need nore tine
to order the car, to get the order of a car,
or cars, plural, for the fleet, or different
ot her expenditures of the |ike, that m ght
just run over the two-year |ifespan.

So we think this is admnistratively
feasible. It's an efficient use of all of
our time. And the result is usually we go
t hrough a roat exercise of |ooking at it and

that's a good thing, but I think you can do
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that w t hout going down to City Council and
maki ng sure that our budget process works a
little more efficiently. And that's the sum
and substance of what we're asking.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: M. Ballenger?

MR. BALLENGER: Yes. | nean, there
were certainly other pieces to the
di scussi on that was had and | guess | kind
of reverted back to where | think things
were during the second I D neeting as opposed
to where we left off in the discussion on
the 13th, | believe, basically because |
don't see a whole |ot of movenent toward
identifying what the guardrails are and what
t he process | ooks Iike.

| think there was discussion, for
exanple, of at |least a notice obligation to
City Council upon amendnent to extend the
|'i fespan beyond what was provided in the
originally approved Capital Budget
Or di nance.

| don't see any of those things
comng to the table and I don't know t hat

sitting here today |I've really thought of
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all of the various guardrails that would
make something like this not only
appropriate in light of the fact that this
is an Ordinance, again, and |I don't think
unfettered discretion is intended to be
given to the Gas Comm ssion when it conmes to
oversi ght of PGWs conpliance with an

Ordi nance, but | believe there is room for
some discretion.

So what |'m kind of struggling with
Is whether it's really ripe for us to even
brief at this point given where we |eft off
in the last discussion and, again, | think
now maybe nore di scussi on about this in ny
m nd m ght be hel pful because | don't know
that |1've really had the ability to identify
and col | aborate with PGWstaff on this issue
in this conpressed tine.

EXEC. DI R. M CLENDON: I think that
that's why on the 13th |I'm pretty certain
that | did request, you know, suggested
| anguage to try to acconplish this so that
at | east we could have a baseline to begin

t hose di scussi ons.
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The Protocols are adopted at the sane
time that the Capital Budget is adopted by
City Council, so if this is something that
makes sense to nove forward, we really do
need to take care of it as part and parcel
of this.

| think the issue of notice to City
Council, that would be sonmething that would
be comng from Comm ssion Staff. W have no
issue with that. W think that that
certainly does make sense, to |let them know
under the framework that we suggested.

And so | amgoing to again officially
on the record request that perhaps there's
some di scussion that takes place and
| anguage devel oped that can be proposed as a
part of this.

| don't think that this is one of
those ultra-conplicated i ssues that we need
to drag out beyond this Capital Budget
process. | think it's a matter of having
conversations, tal king and wor kshoppi ng some
| anguage, because, again, | see both sides,

| absolutely see both sides.
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| see PGW s position that if we're
just tal king about a tinme extension for
things that are conpletely outside of PGW s
control, so the easiest exanple is with
regards to Fleet Operations, a vehicle
delivery for a specialized truck is taking
| onger than PGW antici pated, you know, there
is no dollar amount changi ng, anything of
that nature, if we can find a way to | et
City Council know, hey, this is what's
happeni ng, but not have to go through the
full City Council approval process, | think
t hat that makes sense.

But to the Advocate's point and
position, you know, there should be sone
guardrails. There should be reporting to
City Council. Do we want to have this
happen in every instance where we need a
timeline extension? There could be a
situation where it's not as cut-and-dried as
it is, let's say, in Fleet Operations.

Recogni zing that briefs are due on
March 8th, it sounds |ike, M. Ballenger,

you feel |like there needs to be nore
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conversation, so just asking for you guys to
submt proposed | anguage maybe doesn't
sati sfy your concern.

|s there any sort of availability for
us to have a phone call within the next day
or two or a Zoom neeting within the next day
or two where there can be sone sort of
di scussion regarding this issue? -- because
| feel like we can get to the answer on this
possi bly before briefs are due, but in any
case have a final answer in time for this
Prot ocol change to be made, adopted by the
Comm ssion when it adopts the Capital
Budget, and sent over to City Council.

MR. DASENT: | think a | ess fornmal

approach would probably be the best and I

mean by that | pick up the phone and call
Rob.

MR. BALLENGER: | agree.

MR. DASENT: | think also as a part

of briefing | m ght be able to | ay something
out that gets us a little further along and
t hen maybe conclude it before the

Recommended Deci si on, and that m ght give us
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alittle nore tine.

But | like the idea of working it out
as opposed to having an order. The order
can very well just approve the negotiation
bet ween the parties. And we would share
t hat discussion also with M. MDougall so
everybody is in the | oop.

MR. BALLENGER: Yes. | think it's a
t hree-person call, quite frankly. | think
it would be hel pful and I'm sort of, as
we're tal king, taking a few notes about sone
of the phrases that | mght like to pitch.

But I'm m ndful that we have a
Protocol for emergency circunstances that
didn't define the termand | think we just
can probably put our heads together and come
up with something that will avoid the need
to revisit it in short order because | don't
think that suits our interests either.

So | appreciate M. Dasent's
suggestion and I will be anmenable to a cal
totry to talk through this.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Okay. So then

" m going to request that we do have that
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call take place, that you report back to
Conmmi ssion Staff on the result of that
conversation, so that we can kind of at

| east maybe tie this issue up before briefs
are due, certainly before a Recomended
Decision is issued by the Hearing Exam ners.

MR. DASENT: Okay.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Since that is
the last thing on the Protocol changes, at
this time | amgoing to open the floor up to
coments from menbers of the public.

As a rem nder, as | stated earlier,
you have three m nutes to speak.
Unfortunately, we are already over the
scheduled tinme that we had for that. W are
going to allow everyone who w shes to speak
t he chance to speak, but we are going to be
very firmregarding the three-m nute tine
[imt. We will give you a warning. I|f you
exceed those three mnutes, we are going to
have to unfortunately nute you whet her
you' re done speaking or not.

So if anyone wi shes to offer

comments -- and, again, strictly on the
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fiscal year 2025 Capital Budget; not on any
ot her issues or concerns that you may have
with the Conm ssion -- raise your hand using
t he hand-raising function in Zoom

Ri ght now | see three hands raised,
four.

At this point, not seeing any others,
| am going to take you all in the order in
whi ch your hand was rai sed.

So first we have Peter Furcht.

Agai n, you have three mnutes. You may
begi n speaki ng now.

MR. FURCHT: Thank you,

Ms. McCl endon, for the opportunity to
testify and for three mnutes to speak

rat her than your typical two. That's nuch
appreci at ed.

My name is Peter Furcht. |'ma
Philly resident. | represent nyself and |I'm
a small PGW gas user, small because |
installed a heat punp |last spring to replace
my gas furnace, and | still plan to repl ace
my range and my hot water heater.

So it's another year and it's another
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budget that reflects PGW busi ness as usual,
continued i nvestnment on the expansion of gas
di stribution networks and gas delivery

equi pnment that they may never need.

| couldn't find a mention of any
noney goi ng towards geot hermal and NPAs or
any sort of energy transition initiatives
and it's interesting how this budget does
not square with PGWs sustainability report
presentation | attended only a week ago
where PGW claimed to be so innovative and
progressive in their sustainability efforts.
PGW s nobney does not seemto be where their
mout h i1 s.

Be that as it may, | want the Gas
Comm ssion to know that despite the
testi mony not being conpleted this norning,
| strongly support POWER Interfaith's
posi tion.

In these times of heightened
awareness to the climte change and a nove
away from fossil fuels, how can PGW be
certain of future gas growth based on

hi storical data?
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The devel opers PGWreferenced coul d
very likely decide to build all electric
units. | see no reason whatsoever for PGW
to spend noney on expandi ng their gas
net wor K.

PGW s needs, | believe, are quite the
opposite. PGWshould spend noney to prepare
their network for shrinking, not increasing,
gas sales; and they should spend noney to
build a new network of whatever that nmay be
that by 2050 is going to largely repl ace
t heir gas network.

By the way, | know where PGW can get
$19, 356,000 fromwithin the currently
proposed budget to start this work. It's
t he exact amount POWER is suggesting is not
needed for gas network expansion.

Gas Comm ssion, | ask you, if PGW
asks are you ready to, are you willing to,
woul d you approve them spendi ng $19, 356, 000
on green infrastructure instead of on gas
infrastructure? Gas Comm ssion, is it tinme
for you to consider changing your nane to

Energy Conm ssion?
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Story in short, PGW nmust have a
budget plan that renmoves spendi ng on gas
infrastructure expansion in favor of
spending on green infrastructure and
efficiency prograns.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: You have 20
seconds.

MR. FURCHT: Thank you.

This is what the public that PGW
ultimately works for wants. The need for
gas isn't going away tonorrow or the next
day, but PGWurgently needs to plan and
start spending for that noney today now.
PGW s budget shoul d reflect this urgency.

Thank you.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Thank you.

Next we have Linnea Bond. You may
begi n speaki ng now.

MS. BOND: My nanme is Linnea Bond and
" ma PGW custonmer and also the Health and
Envi ronment al Educati on Director of
Physi ci ans for Social Responsibility -
Pennsyl vani a. Thank you for the opportunity

to coment today.
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An expenditure of $19 mllion on new
gas infrastructure will make it harder to
achieve our City's goal of elimnating
greenhouse gas em ssi ons.

Over the next to |ast year that |
have begun actively follow ng these
hearings, | have been increasingly concerned
about PGW s lack of transition preparation
in light of the City's climte resol utions,
t he absence of non-pipeline alternatives in
their budgets, and their efforts to expand
their gas infrastructure wthout efforts
that were to transition in line with the
City's climate resol ution.

In addition to the health risks that
gas poses, including as a cause trigger
asthma and as an explosion risk in
Phi | adel phi a's agi ng housing stock, gas is
becom ng a financial risk to ratepayers
where famlies who can afford to transition
their honme will do so, |eaving those who
can't who are already struggling with
utility affordability and also are likely

t he nost vulnerable to effects of climte
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change to foot the bill for PGWs stranded
assets.

| appreciate the inportant role that
the Gas Conmi ssion plays in overseeing PGWs
budgets and in protecting ratepayers and so
| ask the Comm ssion to insist on a nore
t horough review of continued investnment on
gas infrastructure.

' m al so di sappoi nted that PGW has
not included a proposal for a geothermal
pilot project in this Capital Budget. The
Gas Comm ssion approved funds for initial
planning in the summer of 2022, but there
have not been substantive updates for the
public since then.

Thank you.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Thank you.

Next we have Mtch Chanin. You nay
begi n speaki ng now.

MR. CHANIN: Great. Thanks so nuch
for the opportunity to testify today. |
woul d echo the comments from Peter and
Li nnea.

Simlarly, I'mvery disappointed to
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see that this is just a business-as-usual
capi tal budget proposal at a time when the
climate crisis is getting nore and nore
intense and at a tinme when PGWitself says
it is working on its nmediumterm and

| ong-term plans to conply with the City's
climate goals, which will require phasing
out the use of natural gas over the next 25
years.

So | did ny best to follow the
conversati on about the Budget Protocols, how
t he proposed expenditure for load growth is
justified, et cetera, and | confess | didn't
fully understand every aspect of it.

But | am confused as to how, if
hi storical data shows that throughput
declines, that w thout a serious evaluation
of the potential return on investment for
investnment in infrastructure to serve new
custoners, like it just doesn't really
square in nmy mnd at all.

How is it that these expenditures
coul d be approved wi thout a serious and

t horough exam nation of the potenti al
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financial inmpact for all of us |ooking at
all the various elenents of the systemthat
woul d be in play at a time when throughput
has declined, our winters are getting
warmer, and there's an accelerating push to
decar boni ze this City through City policy,
federal investnment through the Inflation
Reduction Act and a nunber of other factors,
and at a time when we know we have to be off
of fossil fuels, not expanding their use?

So | hope the Comm ssion will require
a very serious and thorough exam nation of
t hese proposals for new infrastructure to
serve new custoners and for |oad growth. |
think that's really necessary to protect the
financial interests of the City, the
wel | - bei ng of ratepayers like ny famly, and
al so the whol e pl anet.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: 30 seconds.

MR. CHANIN: That's all. Thank you.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Thank you.

And | ast we have Julie Greenberg.
You may begi n speaking now.

MS. GREENBERG. Thank you so nuch.
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Thank you for the opportunity to speak. M
name is Julie Greenberg and I am a PGW
rat epayer.

| know exactly how i nmportant this
year's Capital Budget is because | ama
clergy person and | hear people pouring out
their stories about building their lives in
a state of |ots of energy burdens and al so
climate crisis. And also | amthe nother of
five kids who are young adults who are
trying to build their lives in this
situati on.

We know the clinmate emergency is
getting worse every day and the only way to
stop it is to stop burning fossil fuels.

We live in a dempbcracy. OQur City
Council has enmpowered the Gas Conmm ssion to
scrutinize PGWs budget to make sure that we
are nmoving in the direction we need to nove

to have sustali nable communities here in our

City.

' m shocked to see that PGWis
proposing a $19 mllion expansion of fossil
fuel infrastructure, $19 mlIlion which could
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contribute to increasing rates for people
who are already struggling, but also would
definitely make it harder to achieve the
City's goal of elimnating greenhouse gas
em ssions. It will take our City in the
wrong direction.

' m al so di sappoi nted that PGW has
not included a proposal for a geothernmal
pilot project in this Capital Budget, which
so many of us, as citizens having input into
our energy futures, recommended and spent
| ots of time discussing, especially around
t he Busi ness Diversification Study that was
bei ng done by our City.

The Gas Conmmi ssion itself approved
funds for initial planning back in sumrer
2022 for a geothermal project, but there
really have not been substantive updates to
the public since then. There have been
brief, meager, quarterly updates to the
Conmi ssi on.

But we really don't know, we don't
have enough information to assess what's

goi ng on, and we need to nmove from fossi
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fuels to clean energy as quickly as
possi bl e.

So | want to ask the Gas Conmi ssi on,
you know, would it be possible to wait to
approve this budget proposal until there is
nore information about a plan reflected in
t he budget to nmove towards the City's
denocratically chosen decarboni zati on goal s
and al so --

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: 30 seconds.

MS. GREENBERG. Thank you -- to
approve the geothermal pilot project that we
have all been waiting for? Wen can we
expect a substantive update on that?

| recommend not approving this
proposed budget until we see reflected in it
sone of those really inportant itens.

Thank you very nuch.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Thank you.

That concl udes the public portion of
this hearing at this tine.

The |l ast matter on the agenda is
final cleanup and issuance of, | guess,

instructions fromthe Hearing Exam ners.
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So as the first matter, according to
my notes taken during this neeting, we have
four TR requests. The | anguage that | have
written down isn't necessarily perfect.

" m sure, Ms. Wishinske, between the
two of us we have a cl ear understanding.

But under new | oad additi on we have
TR-1, an exanple from M. Tene. \What was
the exact formulation? Unfortunately, |
just have "exanple" witten. What was the
compl ete fornul ation of that TR request?

HEARI NG EXAM NER WUSHI NSKE:

Ms. McCl endon, | have: Please provide an
exanpl e of a nonstandard project. | believe
t hat was POWER s request.

So, M. MDougall, is that accurate?

MR. McDOUGALL: Correct. And to add
alittle bit of color, it's in reference to
the statenment of M. Tenme that it is for
nonst andard projects that the sinple payback
nmet hodol ogy is replaced with an alternative
met hodol ogy.

EXEC. DI R. McCLENDON: Thank you.

Next we have TR-2: PGW uses the net
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present val ue analysis. Can PGW expl ain how
PGW under st ands the definition?

M. MDougall, can you add nore col or
to that?

MR. McDOUGALL: Absolutely. The
question would be sort of put as: M. Tene
stated that for nonstandard projects net
present value is used to assess the return
on investment. On the Rule 10 return on
I nvest ment cal cul ati on sheets there is a
reference to internal rate of return

Pl ease explain the definitions of
both of these terms and how they're
cal cul ated, including any differences.

EXEC. DI R. M CLENDON: Okay. We have
under Gas Processing TR-3: Please provide a
vendor quote for the Ivy H Il replacenent.

MR. BALLENGER: That's correct.

EXEC. DI R. McCLENDON: Ckay. And
then for TR-4 we have: Provide a table
escal ating the Lisbon Group's cal cul ati ons.

MR. BALLENGER: Right. So
M. Cassidy testified that PGW was using the

| ower capital expenditure estimate provided
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by the Lisbon Group but it had escal ated the
conmponents of that cal culation for purposes
of its budget requests.

Just by way of reference, if | can
find it here, yes, on Page 4 there's Table 1
and it includes Case 1, which is the case to
be escal ated to show how PGW derived its
budget in this proceeding.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Okay. Thank
you.

And then, Ms. Wishi nske, just to make
sure we're clear, our standard TR request at
this juncture is for all participants to
provide a list of adjustnents that are
acceptable to themat this juncture in the
proceeding; is that correct?

HEARI NG EXAM NER WUSHI NSKE: Yes,

Ms. McCl endon, with a few additions. W
usual ly ask for record support, so it would
read: Provide a schedule setting forth al
adjustnments to the proposed fiscal year 2025
Capi tal Budget that you believe are
supported by the record at this point,

including a brief narrative describing each
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that references the record support as well
as the cal culation showing the inpact of
each adjustnment on the budget.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Right. And to
be clear, these will be included and | think
this year let's just include themin the
briefing meno, make it all just one thing
i nstead of sending out the TR requests as a
separate document and then the briefing nmeno
as anot her one.

So that will be TR-5. Everything
will be clearly stated and fornmul ated for
everyone.

As requested with regards to the
Prot ocol changes, we are asking that those
conversations take place as soon as humanly
possi bl e and that a detailed report be
provided to Comm ssion Staff once that
conversation is concl uded.

|s there anything that I am m ssing,
Ms. Wishi nske?

HEARI NG EXAM NER WUSHI NSKE: | don't
have anything further.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Okay.
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M. Dasent, is there anything from
your end?

MR. DASENT: Nothing further. Thank
you.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: M. Ballenger?

MR. BALLENGER: Just to make sure |
heard correctly, are the TRs due on the 5th?
|s that correct?

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Well, we
didn't say when the TRs were due. W didn't
give a date. But the 5th |I think sounds
about right. But we didn't give a due date.

MR. BALLENGER: | just want to have
it on nmy calendar and I'll | ook forward to
speaking with M. Dasent and M. MDougal
about the Protocols.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Thank you.

M. MDougall, do you have anythi ng?

MR. McDOUGALL: Yes. If | may, |
have a suggestion to expedite resol ution of
my cross with M. Tene.

There was a suggestion that we
reconvene offline to continue, but | think

it's possible fromny perspective to wap it
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up with a TR that we can add to the list and
avoi d the need for another phone call.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Okay.

MR. DASENT: Well, whether it's
treated as a TR or just a witten request,
but | see the advantage of a TR, because
then it will have a point in the record.

EXEC. DI R. M CLENDON: Okay. So what
is your question, M. MDougall? And we'll
make that TR-5 and TR-6 will beconme the
adj ust nents questi on.

MR. McDOUGALL: Okay. Thank you.

The question is: Please confirm
whet her PGW has perfornmed any projections
for main and service additions installations
for FY '25 that are equal to or |less than
$50, 000. Pl ease provide copies of any such
proj ections.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Okay. And

TR-6, as | said, will be the agreed-upon
adj ustments. Again, everything will be
clearly stated in the TR list that will come

out with the briefing neno.

Again, | sincerely want to apol ogi ze
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to everyone on here for what happened during
this hearing. You know, it is open to the
public. W want public engagenent.
Unf ortunately, that person chose to abuse
it.

| sincerely apologize. A report has
been made to Zoom | don't know how much
value it is, but I do want to apol ogi ze
again for what took place. | personally am
still a bit shaken up by that. So ny
sincerest apol ogi es.

| thank you for your time and this
will for the time adjourn this hearing.
Thank you very nuch.

If Ms. Mgatz and Conm ssion Staff

can pl ease stay on the Zoom | would
appreciate it. Thank you all and have a
good day.

MR. DASENT: Thanks very nmuch.

(Wher eupon the hearing adjourned at
12: 40 p.m)

Reported By: Susan Marie M gatz, RMR, CRR
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